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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited ('the Company'), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
t he Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the materia l 
accounting policies and other explanatory information . 
• 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting 
Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company 
as at March 31, 20241 and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and 
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143( 10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('lCAl') together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), 
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified 
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

~ n preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 
t omp5~y"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
th,e gqlog concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance w ith Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, w hether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

( c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

( d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

( e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

yJ also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
~ ~f~uirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
f<.E;?'as..onablY,•.pe thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

~/ -"~',, 
~r~jf\C~ 
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As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during 
the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of Section 143( 11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order. 

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books; 

( c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including the other comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

( d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

( e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act; 

(f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as on March 31, 2024 

in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our 
report dated April 22, 2024 as per Annexure B expressed unmodified opinion; and 

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of t he 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) the Company did not have any pending litigations which impacted its financial position as at March 31, 2024; 

( ii) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2024; 

(i ii) there were no amounts which were required to be t ransferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024; 

(iv) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including 
foreit

1
n entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

~~nterr ediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

~ 
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whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

b) Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign 
entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
t he Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement 

(v) As per the information and records provided to us by the company, no dividend has been declared or paid during 
the year. 

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31 1 2024 which has a feature of recording audit 
trail ( edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N ,, 

/4 
- ~~'-"1/ 

Partner •01\r.- 1/ 

Membership No.: 553420 

UDIN - 2..c1ssJ '12o13k.'A GcA3bb2-

Place: Delhi 
Date: April 22, 2024 
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A~ure A to the Independent A!!ditors' RgpQd: 

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report of 
even date of Satin Finserv Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024) 

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use assets and Intangible Assets 

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets on the basis of 
available information. 

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets of the Company were physically verified as at 
the year-end by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancy was noticed on such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties 
where the company is the lessee and lease agreements are duly executed in the favor of lessee) under 
Property, plant and equipment in its name during the period under audit. Thus, paragraph 3(i) ( c) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment and intangible assets during the 
year. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 
2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended 
in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Thus, paragraph 3(i)( e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(ii) Inventories & Working Capital Limit 

a) The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 
3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b) As per the information and explanation provided to us, the company does not have a working capital limit 
sanctioned from any bank or financial institution on the basis of security of current assets during the year 
and as on March 31, 2024. Hence, the reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iii) Loans granted by company 

a) The Company has been registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non­
Banking Financial Company (N BFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to 

~ the company. 

-iJ. f.nnexure A of Audit Report for SFL for FY 2023-24 Page 1 of 6 
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b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans in nature of loans and advances, during the 
year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are 
generally been regular as per stipulation. 

d) In respect of loans granted by the company, the details of tota l amount overdue above 90 days are as 
follows: 

No. of cases Principal Amount Interest Overdue Total Overdue (in Remarks 
Overdue (in Rs.) (in Rs.) Rs.) 

694 3,29,94,636.00 1,91, 17,213.00 5,21, 11,849.00 NIL 

The company is taking reasonable steps for the recovery of principal and interest overdue amount. 

e) The Company has been registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non­
Banking Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to 
the company. 

f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(iii)(f) is not applicable. 

(iv) Compliance of Section 185 and 186 of The Act 

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of loans granted, to the extent applicable. 

(v) Acceptance of Deposits 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) Maintenance of Cost records 

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central 
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of sect ion 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for the services of the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(

,1 )~ 

~I /,'i, 1/ 
/ 
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(vii) Payment of Applicable Taxes 
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a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the company examined 
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income­
tax, goods and services t ax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, professional taxes and other 
material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities in India. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
income-tax, service tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, professional taxes and other material 
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and t he records of the company examined by 
us, during the period under audit, there are no dues of income tax or any other applicable statutory dues 
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

viii) Undisclosed income 

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(ix) Dues to a Financial Institution or bank or debenture holder 

a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of 
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions. 

b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or 
any government authority. 

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has utilized 
the money obta ined by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on 
an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on 
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company. 

e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(ix)( e) of t he Order is not applicable to the Company. 

f) The Company does not have any subsid iary, associate or joint venture during t he year. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(ix)(f) of t he Order is not applicable to the Company. 

Ai exurj.A of Audit Report for SFL for FY 2023-24 Page 3 of 6 



(x) Initial Public Offer 
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a) The Company did not ra ise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xi) Fraud by the Company or on the Company 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there was an instance of embezzlement of 
cash by an employee involving amount of Rs. 1.76 Lakhs. The Company has terminated the services of such 
employees and also initiated legal action against such employees. The company has also reported the case 
to the RBI as required. The Company has not recovered anything from that employee. Please refer Note 
no. 46(x) to the audited financia l statements. 

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and up to the date of this report. 

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
company during the year. hence reporting under clause 3(xi)( c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xii) Nidhi Company 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii) Related Party Transactions 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act 
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv) Internal Audit 

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
the nature of its business. 

b) We have considered, the int ernal audit reports for t he year under audit, issued to the Company during the 
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

~ ~ xure A of Audit Report for SFL for FY 2023-24 Page 4 of 6 
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(xv) Non - Cash Transactions 
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash t ransactions with respect to acquiring any asset 
for consideration other than cash with directors or persons connected with them or vice versa. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

xvi) Registration with RBI 

a) The Company has been registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non­
Banking Financial Company (N BFC). In the previous year 2022-23, due to the amalgamation of Taraashna 
Financial Services Limited (amalgamating entity) with the company, which is registered as a Non-Banking 
Financial Company (NBFC), as on March 31, 2023, the company was not fulfilling Principal Business Criteria 
laid down by the RBI. As per the criteria, atleast 50% of total assets of the company should be financial 
assets and atleast 50% of the gross income should be from financial activities. The company met the f irst 
criteria, but did not meet the second criteria as on March 31, 2023. However, the RBI vide letter dated July 
22, 2022 had granted to the company, time till March 311 2024 for fulfilling the said criteria. The company is 
meeting both the criteria for PBC as on March 311 2024. 

b) The Company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities during the year having a Certificate of 
Registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank 
of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)( c) of the Order is not applicable. 

d) As per the information and explanation provided to us by the company, 2 companies in the group had 
withdrawn the application for registration as Core Investment Company under the Reserve Bank of India 
Act. The applications regarding the same have been accepted by RBI on August 9, 2023. 

<vii) Cash Losses 

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the year and the immediately preceding financial 
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xviii) Resignation of Statutory Auditor 

There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year. Hence the reporting 
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

xix) Material Uncertainty about the Company's Capability to discharge its liabilities 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 

\f As . knowledge of the Board of Directors' and Management's plans and based on our examination of the 
.,,.,---.:f c.l~~ vidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us t o believe that 

h \a,ny material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of 
• l t~eting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 

"~?;..~/ 
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year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) Corporate Social Responsibility 

a) The provisions of section 135 of the Act are applicable on the company. However, considering average 
profit for last 3 years, amount required to be spent under CSR is nil. Accordingly, there are no unspent 
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing or other than ongoing projects 
requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VI I of the Act in compliance with second proviso to sub­
section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the order 
is not applicable of the company. 

xxi) Qualification or Adverse Remarks by the respective auditors 

Since the company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements, the reporting under this 
clause is not applicable to the company. 

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N 

~o 

Jatin Goel ,\ 

Partner " 
"- "' :?!. fl.r ·J ,, 

Membership No.: 55.:5420 

UDIN - 2'1.553'-t 2a 8 K'fiQ.lA ~& b 'L 

Place: Delhi 
Date: April 221 2024 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Satin Finserv Limited on the 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Independent Auditors' Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited ('the Company') as at and for 
the year ended March 31, 20241 we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ('IFCoFR') 
of the Company as at that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contro ls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('!CAI'). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with t he Standards on Auditing issued by the !CAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 
143( 10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of I FCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the !CAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's IFCoFR. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Rajeev Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

201, 203, 2nd Floor, 
A-20, lndraprastha Bhawan, 

Or. Mukherjee Nagar 
Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009 

011-45131008,9810057854 
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com 

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the 
Company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N 

~ )~ 
Partner 1\ •r'.0'' 

Membership No.: 553420 
UDIN -2 ~ 5~34 2o Q,I:\' A.ilCA 3 6b 1--

Place: Delhi 
Date: April 22, 2024 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
Balance Sheet as at March 31' 2024 

(All amounts in ~ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank balances other than cash and cash ec1uivalents 

Investments 

Trade receivables 

Lo~ns 

Other financial assets 

Non Financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 

Deferred tax assets (oet) 

Property, Plant and Eciuipment 

T nrnngible assets 

CapJtal Works-in-Progress 

Orher 11011 financial assets 

TOTAL 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Financial Liabilities 

Payables 

Trade pavables 

total outstanding dues of MSJ\[Es 

total outstanding dues of creditors ocher than MSMEs 

Debt securities 

Borro\\ings (other rJ1an debt securities) 

Other financial liabilities 

Non Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 
Other non-financial liabilities 

EQUITY 

l:':gu.ity share capital 

( Jrher equity 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Notes 

4 

5 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

13A 

'14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

The ar.cornpanying notes are an integral part nf the financial statements. 

As per our review report of even dare attached 

As at As at 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

5,485.86 3,878.47 
3,959.69 3,161.44 

313.38 100.39 

337.64 298.33 

32,192.22 22,126.34 

896.35 690.08 

43,185.14 30,255.05 

923.73 996.78 

1,090.99 1,123.55 

331.98 299.12 

2.36 4.70 

9.21 

575.09 340.04 
2,933.36 2,764.19 

46,118.50 33,019.24 

13.78 10.42 

I '13.28 279.61 

1,952.13 553.09 

23,772.77 16,501.87 

243.12 271.49 

26,095.08 17,616.48 

1,636.22 1,527.57 
108.l 5 107.67 

1,744.37 1,635.24 

15,755.79 14,05 1.49 

2,523.26 (283.97) 
18,279.05 13,767.52 
46,118.50 33,019.24 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

J\l.No ::5342,J 

P jace: G11r11gra1n 

ll?.tc: April 22'2{124 

Bhm nl'sh Khan11a 

fJI N: fJ3j2J I 18 

WTD&CEO 

P~ G""'b'"'" 

A:rjun Bansal 

Chief flinancial Officer 

Place : Gurugrnm 

Date: April 22'2024 

Harvinder Pal Singh 

DIN: 00333754 

Director 

Place: G;r:+: 
Um~.,;~, 
M No.: A40102 

Company Secreta~C.( 

Place : Gurugran1 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts in ~ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
lnterest income 

Fees and commi;sion income 

Net gain on fair value changes 

Total revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total income 

Expenses: 
Finance costs 

Impairment on financial instruments 

Emploree benefits expense 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax 
Exceptional items 

Profit / (loss) before tax 
Prior period items 
Tax expense 
Current tax 

Mat credit utilization/ (entitlement) (net) 

Deferred tax expense/(credit) 
Earlier years tax 

Total tax expense 

Net profit/ (loss) for the period 

Other comprehensive income 
Item that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss 

Re-measurement gains/Qosses) on defined benefit plans 
Income tax relating to these items 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) (in Rs.) 
Basic (Rs.) 

Diluted (Rs.) 

Notes 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 
31 

For the period ended 

March 31' 2024 

6,547.50 

5,289.31 

64.23 
11,901.04 

239.47 
12,140.51 

2,643.63 

358.23 

5,755.34 

156.44 

2,523.35 
11,436.99 

703.52 

703.52 

150.41 

(150.40) 
184.2] 

4.53 
188.75 

514.77 

(4.49) 

1.25 
(3.24) 

511.53 

0.36 

0.36 

For the year ended 

March 31' 2023 

4,165.78 

6,382.43 

0.19 
10,548.41 

102.28 
10,650.69 

1,763.53 

378.05 

5,318.41 

174.89 

2,194.41 
9,829.29 

821.40 

821.40 

116.85 

(116.85) 

215.09 

0.01 
215.10 

606.30 

(11.36) 

3.16 

(8.20) 

598.10 

0.38 

0.38 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our redew report of even date attached 

Place: Gurngram 
Date: April 22'2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Bhuvnesh Khanna 

DIN: 03323118 

WTD&CEO J;•m~m 
Arjun Bansal 

Chief F inancial Officer 

P lace : Gurugram 

Date: April 22'2024 

Harvinder Pal Singh 

DIN: 00333754 

Director 

rZa~e.\:~,/: 

\!::~er Singh 

J\l No.: A40102 

Company Secretat}()( e_ tO 
Place : Gurugram 



SATIN FJNSERV LIMITED 
Cash flow stalcmcnt for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts u, 't 1n lakh._,, unlc,!t Stilted 01..hcrw1~c) 

Particulars 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTJVlTIES 
Net Profit/(Loss) before rax 

Adjusuncnts for: 

Provision for expected credit losses 
Pro\'lsion for cmplorce benefits 
Dt:preciation and amort.is:uio11 t:..~pensc 

Depreciation of ROU assets 
Loss/(i,r.un) on disposal of tangible asset< 
I ntcrest paid on bortu\\~ngs 

Operating Profit/(loss) Before Working Capita.I Changes 

Changes in working capital: 

At!}11,1fmc11l1for (i,irmue)/ dtataJt i,, opm1tmg aut/J: 

Trade rccchablcs 
Ocher bank balances 
Financial A~sct.:;: 

Other financial assets 

Ocher non financial assets 

Adj,1.tlmtnls j,r (inmast)/ dtrT'faSt ,n &jNroling liabilihes: 

Trade payables 
Gt.her 6nancfal liabilities 
Other non financial liabilities 
Provision(, 

Movement in ope.rating assets and liabilities 

Cash gcner:ucd from operations 

Less: lncom: rax refun,I / (paid) (net) 
Net cash flow/(used) in operating acrivities 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIBS 
Purchase of propert)\ plant and eqwpmcnt 
Sale of propcrtv, plant and equipment 

lnvcsrmcnt 1n Pass through Ccttificatcs 
Net cash used in investing activities 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Jssue of equit) share capual (net <.>f issue expenses) 
Repayrncn, r,f horrowmgs 

Proceed:, from borrowings 

] ntcr~sr paid on borrowings 
Pa)ment of 1:.ase liabilities 

Net cash flow Crom financing activities 

Net (Dccrcase)/Jncreasc in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and ca~h equiv,dents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents iH the e nd of the year 

Reconciliation o f cash and cash equivalents as per the cash 
flow statement 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(A+B+C) 

For the period ended 

March 31' 2024 

703.52 

92.15 
(57.98) 
81.26 
75.18 

(14.67) 
2,710.16 

3,589.62 

(39.31) 
(798.25) 

(10,158.04) 
(206.27) 
(235.05) 

(162.97) 

(28.37) 
0.48 

162.14 
(11,465.64) 

(7,876.02) 
(81.89) 

(7,957.91) 

(288.07) 
107.26 

(212.99) 

(393.80) 

4,000.00 

(15.340.66) 
23,960.61 
(2,710.16) 

49.31 

9,959.10 

1,607.39 

3,878.47 
5,485.86 

1,607.39 

The accomp~nying notes ar~ an inrcgr.11 part of the financiaJ statcmcncs. 

A~ per our redew repon of C\'Cn date amched 

For Rajccv Bhatia & A.~sociates 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn'• Rel(i,trntiorr t'\'?·' 021]7~ 

~S-, 

q~ ~~ )~\ 

M.No . .553420 

For and on behalf of the Board of Direc10rs of 

/I Ai Finserv Limited 

1r 1Lv..t'sl\L 
Bhuvncsh Khanna 

DIN: 03,2311 8 
\VTD&CEO 

For the period ended 

March 31' 2023 

821.40 

21.25 
(3.96) 
82.42 

92.47 

1,725.62 

2,739.20 

(261.64) 
1,114.80 

(5,964.80) 
212.86 

(66.08) 

43.94 
42.87 

(1.09) 
37.50 

(4,841.64) 

(2,102.44) 
(291.75) 

(2,394.19) 

(162.70) 
41.10 

(100.39) 

(221.99) 

(5,834.55) 
11,565.89 
(1,72562) 

(48.83) 

3,956.89 

1,340.71 

2,537.76 
3,878.47 

1,340.71 

c:, 0 

Han,inder Pal Singh 

DIN: 00333754 
Directvr 

Place: Gurn~ 

W:S,gh • 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: April 22'l024 

Chief F inancial Officer 

Place : Gurugram 
Date: April 22'2024 

M No.: A40102 
Company Sccrctary(X C. C.C) 
Place : Gumgram 



SATIN FTNSERV LIMITED 
Staicment of chan.ges jn equity for tht: period ended March 31' 2024 

(AJJ amoW1t.S in ~ m lakhs, unless seated otherwise) 

A Equity share capital 

Current reporting period 
Paniculars 

Equity Sh:.1.n:: Capim.l 

Previous reporting period 
Particufars 

E9uiry Share Capital 

B Other equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 

Profit/ (1.oss) for rhe year 
9thi.:r comprehensive income (nt.:t of tax) 

r ssue o f cqmcy share~ 
Transfer to sra.nuory ri.;scrvi.;s 

Balance as at April 01, 2023 

Profir/(Loss) for the year 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 
1s~uc of e9uity shan;s 

T ransfer co stamtory rcscn.·cs 
Balance as at March 31' 2024 

"' Refer norc 22 

Balance as at April 
1, 2023 

14,051.49 

Balance as at April 
I, 2022 

10,250.00 

Statut0ry reserves 

145.51 

164.28 
309.79 

102.95 
4U.74 

The accompan}ing notes arc an inrcgrnl part o f the finan cial starcmcnrs. 
1\s pi.:r om rt:,.;e.\V report of even date attached 

For Rajccv Bhatia&, Ass~ciQccs. : ~ ........... ( 
Charreri.:d Al.-counranrs' 

Firm's Regi~ttatio'ri No.: 021776N 

~ LHI V 

-~, (oel _ \ ~ -
. _, 5-., 

''artner (;~ ~{Jj_ 
M.No. 553420 '-1//ered fV:,rJ:>,S 

Place: Gurugra.m 

Date: April 22'2024 

Changes in Equjcy 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors 

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors 

Securities premium 

" 

-

2,295.70 

2,295.70 

Restated Balance as Balance as at 
at April !, 2023 Change in equity March 31' 2024 

share capital 

during the year 

14,051.49 1,704.:\0 15,755.79 

Balance as at April 1, Balance as at 
2022 Change in equity March 31, 2023 

share capital 
during the year 

10,250.00 3,801.49 14,051.49 

Reserves and surplus Total 
Share capital Capital redemption Retained earnings 
pending allotment* reserve Amalgamation 

reserve* 
3,801.49 - 725.23 (1,752.81) 2,919.42 

- 606.~0 606.30 
- (8.20) (8.20) 

(3,801.49) (3,801.49) 
(164.28) 

725.23 (1,318.99) (283.97) 
" 514.77 514.77 

(3.24) (3.24) 
2,295.70 

(102.95) 
" " 725.23 (910.41) 2,523.26 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

~

tin Finscrv Limited 

L-1~l(L-- -Bhuvnesh Khanna 
DIN: 03323118 
\VTD & CEO 

P lace : Gurugra1 

Arjun Bansal "~ 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Gurugram 

Date: April 22'2024 

c----, ..... 
Harvinder Pal Singh 

DIN: 003337.54 
Director 

Plac~urugr:i.m f ~ 

Gurv~ ngi,\ ~~~ 

M No.: A40102 

Company Sccrerary'bl, l t t 
Place : Gurugram 



Satin Finserv Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 
March 31, 2024 

1. Company Overview / Corporate Information 

Satlll Finserv Limited ('the Company') is a public limited company and incorporated on August 10, 2018, under the 
provisions of Companies Act. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Noa-Banking Financial Company (NBFC­
ND') and is registered as a Noa-Banking Financial Company (NBFC') with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI'') in 
January 09, 2019. The main objective of the Company to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Company 
and to undertake business relating to financing. The Company is also engaged in the business of "Business 
Correspondent" activity with various Banks and NBFCs. As per Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'), scope of activity of 
Business Correspondent services includes Identification of Borrowers, collection and preliminary processing of loan 
applications including verification of primary information, processing and submission of applications to banks, 
promoting, nurturing and monitoring of Self Help Groups/Joint Liability Groups, post-sanction monitoring, follow­
up for recovery, disbursal of small value credit and recovery of principal/ collection of interest. The Company is 
domiciled in India and its registered office & corporate office is situated at 4th Floor, B-Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog 
Vihar, Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana - 122016. 

1.1 Basis of preparation 

(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

These Ind AS financial statements ("the Financial Statements'') have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. 
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 are the financial statements, which has been prepared in 
accordance with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'). 
111e financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of 
Directors on April 22, 2024. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for 
certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained 
in relevant accounting policies. 

2. Summary of material accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases 
summarised as below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the 
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS. 

a) Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition and initial meamrement 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for 
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are 
included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred and the cost of item can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintertanc"a.~ harged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which iliey are incurred. 

J ,ij~~I ;:,Sf:-~,, 
'J * I ,· , . .,. 
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Satin Finserv Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 
March 31, 2024 

S11bseqt1ent measurement (depreciation method, usefit! lives and resid11al value) 

Property, plant and equipment a.re subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written-down method over the useful life 
of the assets as prescribed under Part 'C' of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Asset class Useful life 

Office equipment 5 vea.rs 

Computer and accessories - end user devices 3 vears 

Computer and accessories - network equipment 6 years 

Furniture and fixtures 10 vears 

Vehicles 8 vears 

Plant and machinery 6 - 15 vears 
Deprec1at:J.on 1s calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which die asset is ready for use or till the date the asset 
is sold or disposed. 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at die end of each financial year. 

De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition 
of the asset (calculated as die difference between the net disposal proceeds and die carrying amount of die asset) is 
recognized in die statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised. 

Capital work-inprogress 
Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and advances paid to 
acquire property, plant and equipment. Assets which are not ready to intended use are also shown under capital work­
m-progress. 

b) Intangible assets 

&cognition and initial measurement 
Intangible assets are stated at tlieir cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties 
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization 
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. 

St1bseq11ent measurement (amortisation) 
Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 3 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The 
estimated useful life (amortisation period) of die intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption 
of economic benefits and is reviewed at die end of each financial year and die amortisation period is revised to reflect 
the changed pattern, if any. 

c) Revenue recognition 

lntmst, administration and other charge.r (for loans) 
Interest, administration and oilier charges received are recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method along with die consideration of transaction cost directly attributable to the creation of financial instrument 
being Loan Asset. Additional interest/ overdue interest/ penal charges are recognised only when it is reasonable certain 
that the ultimate collection will be made. 

Commission income 
Income from business correspondent services is recognised as and when die services are rendered as per agreed tenns 

~\;!;-\~ & -~[\.(i~ nditions of die contract. ~r \g,\ 
ffj ')I 'd' )~ < 4 ,~ -
~ ~ ~ 
*Q~ # . 
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Satin Finserv Limited 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 
March 31, 2024 

Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date. 

Othtr Charges related to Operation 
The Company collect other charges i.e. login fee, documentation charges, overdue interest, Cheque bounce charges, 
prepayment charges, conversion charges, document retrieval charges, Foreclosure charges etc from all the borrowers 
based on event, and recognise this income on collection basis. 

Misce//aneo11s income 
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ collection. 

d) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or construction of a qualifying asset, are capitalized during 
the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset 
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method. 

e) Taxation 

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the 
ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance 
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised 
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 

Minimum alternate tax ('MAT') credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit 
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and 
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of 
MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid 
during the specified period. 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised 
tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable 
income. This is assessed based on the Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non­
taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets 
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future ta."Cable 
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside 
statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 

f) Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid annual leave) where 
the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render 

~the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
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Satin Finserv Limited 
Summary of material accounting po]icies and other exp]anatory information for the period ended 
March 31, 2024 

employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured 
on an undiscounted basis. 

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as 
under: 

Defined contribution plans 

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance 
scheme. The contribution made by the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

Defined benefit plans 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Where 
in the employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to employee's length of service and last drawn salary. 
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to 
the employee's length of service and final salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, 
even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. The liability recognised in the statement 
of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the 
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of 
independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/ asset are included in 
other comprehensive income. 

Other long-term employee benefits 

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long­
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to avail after 
one year from the Balance Sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent 
actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past 
experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such 
gains or losses are determined. 

g) Share based payments 

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Satin Creditcare Network Limited ('Parent 
Company') Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value 
of the employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The 
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the 
employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Parent Company's equity shares. 

h) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is 
estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash­
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CG Us. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is 
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. 
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets 
of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a prorata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company 
reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal 
is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

i) Impairment of financial assets 

Loan assets 

The Company follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition 
as summarised below: 

• A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in 'Stage 1' and has its credit 
risk continuously monitored by the Company i.e. the default in repayment is within the range of 0 to 30 days. 

• If a significant increase in credit risk ('SICR') since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is 
moved to 'Stage 2' but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired i.e. the default in repayment is within the range 
of 31 to 90 days. 

• If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to 'Stage 3' i.e. the default 
in repayment is more than 90 days. 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 
2 and Stage 3 loan assets ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given 
Default, defined as follows: 

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation 
(as per "Definition of default and credit-impaired" above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over 
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted 
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other 
credit support. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of 
default. For a revolving commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that 
is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur. 

Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and 
lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. 

Other financial assets 
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the 
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal 
to the lifetime e.'tpected credit losses. 

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life 
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial 
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asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial 
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that 
is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk 
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have 
low credit risk at the balance sheet date. 

j) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / Ooss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on 
the available information. 

k) Leases 

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any 
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an 
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain 
that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company 
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the 
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the company's operations taking into account 
the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is 
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and 
future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the 
existing lease contracts. 

The Company as a lessee 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for building for office premises. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whetl1er 
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease 

and 
(iii)the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements includes the exclusive options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease 
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be e.'Cercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any 
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lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right­
of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term 
and useful life of the underlying asset. 

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset 
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the 
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a 
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will 
exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet. 

The Company as a lessor 

The company does not have any leases as a lessor. 

Transition 

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied the standard to all lease contracts 
existing on April 1, 2019 using the prospective method and has recorded the lease liability at the present value of the 
lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and corresponding right of use asset at the same value. 
Due to the prospective method applied, the comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 will continue 
to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our financial statements for year ended March 31, 
2019. 
Leases in which the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the 
lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis 
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs. 

I) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting 
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the 
time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company 
or 

• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related 
asset is disclosed. 

m) Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent 
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below. 
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Non-derivative financial assets 

Subsequent measurement 

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost - a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the 
following conditions are met 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows, and 

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. 

Amortised cost is calculated by talcing into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Investments in murual funds - Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and 
loss (FVTPL). 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing 
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows 
other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The 
amount ofECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that 
is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-ncognition of financial assets 
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or 
when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not 
retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights 
and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

n) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus 
issue. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost 
associated) for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

o) Segment reporting 

The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments 
are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts 
are regularly by the executive management ('chief operating decision maker') in deciding how to allocate resources 
and in assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are line with the accounting 
policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been 
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with the operating activities of the segment. 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly identified as the chief operating decision maker. 
Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to 
segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities", as the case 
maybe. 

p) Share issue expenses 

All the expenses pertaining to issue of equity share capital are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account to the 
extent any balance is available for utilisation in securities premium account. 

q) Guarantee contracts 

First loss default guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse 
the bank and financial institution for a loss, it incurs because a specified customer fails to make payments when due, 
in accordance with the terms of a loan contracts or due to negligence or deficiency of service or non-observance, by 
the Company, of stipulations and conditions contained in the agreement with respective business partners. Such 
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions, for whom the Company acts as 'Business Correspondent'. 

On each reporting date, liabilities against these guarantee contracts are measured and recognised in books as per the 
terms of agreements and any subsequent mutual consent with respective business partners. 

Further, the maximum liability against these guarantee contracts are restricted to the cash outflow agreed in the 
agreements with respective business partners. 
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r) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Significant management j11dgemmts 

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an 
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impainnent of 
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable 
amount of the assets. 

Expected credit loss ('ECL') - The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and 
credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant 
judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit loss: 

• Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; 
• Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenanos for each type of 

product/ market and the associated ECL; and 
• Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL. 

Provisions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, chan'ges in facts and legal aspects, the 
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual 
future outcome may be different from this judgement. 

Significant estimates 

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial 
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions 
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. 

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in 
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying 
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases, 
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. 

(This space bas been intentional!J left blank) 
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Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents 

Particul:-trs 

Balance with banks in CLmcnt accounts 

Cash in hand 
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

Total of cash and cash equivalents 

As at 

March 3 I' 2024 
1,241.69 

600.iS 

3,643.39 
5,485.86 

~otc; There ,1rc no rcpau::iation restrictions with respect to c;i.~h and cash equivalents as at the t:nd of the reponing year and comparntivc rears. 

Note 5:Bank balances other 1han cash and cash equivalents 

Par1iculats As at 
Match 31' 2024 

Term deposits for remamjng maturity of 3 months or k~s 

Tcm1 dcpositS \.vith remaining manmty more than 3 momhs but less than 12 months 
Term deposits having remaining maturity of more than 1 rear 

Bal:mce with banks and financial fo.scitutions to the extent held as margln money deposits against borrowings and 
guarantees/ against firsr loss/ second loss default guarantees 3,959.69 

Total 3,959.69 

Note 6: Investments 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31' 2024 

Pass through certificates (at amortised cost) 313.38 
313.38 

Note 7: Trade receivables (at amortised cost) 

Particufars 
As at 

March 31' 2024 
Trnde Receivables 
Recci-.,·ahles considered goo,J • unsecurecl~ 337.64 
Less: Ptovision for impairment on trade receivables 

337.64 
(II) Other Receivables 

Other Receivables 

Less: Provision fur lmpamnent on orher t:eceivablcs 

Tobi 337.64 

*Based on past history of receivables, Management considered Nil allowances towards credit losses. 

Note 8: Lo.m portfolio (at amortised cost) 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31' 2024 
Portfolio Jo;ms 

Secured 29,027.40 
Unsecured 3,833.66 
J .ess 1 mpairment loss allowance (668.84) 

32,192.22 

Total 32,192.22 

(i) Secured by ptopctty 28,777.38 

(ii) S:cured by book debts 250.02 
(iii) Unsecured 3,833.66 

Total - Gross 32,861.06 
Less· Imoai.m1ent loss allowance (668.84) 
Total-Net 32,192.22 

Loans in India 

(i) Public Sector . 
(ii) Others 32,861.06 
Tota.I - Gross 32,861.06 
Less: Impairment \05<; .Jlowance (668.84) 
Tot.ii -Net 32,192.22 

The r.hove amuum indurles t.he 1ntcre~t :u:uued and exclude unamvruscd k>an processin~ fees, ~\ follt1,vs: 

Particulars 

Interest accurcd 567.88 
Unamortised luan processing fee 512.lll 

# There :ire no loans or -advances repayahlc on dem11nd OJ: without specifying any tenns or period oi repa~'lnent of the related. panics. 
I 

•:7 Ll~I•, 
-

" . '/ - • ~-" 

As at 

Morch 31' 2023 
2,046.94 

678.76 

1,152.77 

3,878.47 

As at 

March 31' 2023 

50.03 

3,111.41 

3,161.44 

Asat 

Match 31' 2023 

100.39 
100.39 

As at 

March 31' 2023 

298.33 

298.33 

298.33 

As at 

March 31' 202.l 

17,295.42 
5,407.60 
(576.68) 

22,126.34 

22,126.34 

16,583.81 

711.61 

5,407.60 
22,703.02 

(576.68) 

22,126.34 

22,703.02 

22,703.02 
(576.68) 

22,126.34 

341.56 
284.68 

AftSERt,; 
(,. 

~ -;;l 
! i= GUR~ M )-: 

I~ ,., 
) 
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Note 9: Other financial assets (at amortised cost) 

Particul;:irs 

Securi ty depos it~ (urnecurccl, considered good) 

Staff advance ,m<l orhcr rccovernble 
Other recon::rablc 
Unbilled cevenue 

No1c 10: Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Advance income-tax :md TDS receivable 

N ote 11: Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets: 

(a) Provi8ion for. Emplorcc benefits 
(b) Depreciation and a.morrisat-ion 

(c) Carried Forward Losses 
(c) lmp,,c,of lndt\s I 16 

(t) Allowance for expected credir loss 

(iJ t\linimum aJtcmatc ta."'< credit encidement 

CT,) Mea;wcment of financial assets and financial liabjJities at amortised cost 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities: 

(i) Pro,ision for 36(1J(viia) 

Deferred tax assets/(LiabiJities) (net) 

Notes: 

(i) Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilitics) for period ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax .isscts: 

(a) Provision for Employee benefits 
(b) Depreciation and amo rtisation 

(c) Carried Forward Losses 

(d) Impact of Indru 11 6 

(c) Provision for first loss default guaratitcc 

(t) J\lirumum alternate tax credit entirlcmcm 

(g) Measurement. of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 

(h) Others 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred t~x liabilities: 

GJ l'ro,ision for 36(1J(viia) 

Net deferred tax asset 

(ii) Movement in deferred tax assets/Qiabilitics) for year ended March 31, 2023: 

Particulars 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets: 

(a) Pro\.'JSi()n for Employee benefits 
(b) Depreciation ,1.od amonisation 

(c) C1rrwd Fnrward Lossc~ 

(d) Impact of JndAs 116 
(c:) Pn,\·,sion for first ln'i'i default guarnmcc 

(I) J\l.mimum aherrnue ca...; credi t cnciclcmrnt 
(g) J\Ie.1surcmcnt (1f financial as~cts and financial li:.ibilicic!- at amortised cost 

(h) O thers 

(i) Pl:'climi nar}' expenses 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities: 
(i) Emp.nycc hcndits 
G) Provision for 36(1)(vtia) 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

33.46 

29.58 
302.69 

2.87 

535.29 
222.45 

3.1 2 

1,129.46 

5.91 

5.91 

1,123.55 

As at 

M,o,ch 31, 2022 

41.15 

29.03 
524.10 

4.98 
,22.1 '1 

IUS.60 
0.14 

0.25 
1,227.56 

8.91 
8.91 

1,218.65 

As at 

March 31' 2024 

24.53 

35.96 

714.82 
121.04 

896.35 

As at 

March 31' 2024 

923.73 

923.73 

Asat 

March 31' 2024 

33.98 
33.74 

53.41 

3.00 
607.29 

372.85 

0.00 
1,104.27 

13.28 
13.28 

1,090.99 

Recognised in other Recognised in 
comprehensive statemen1 of profit 

income and loss 

1.25 (0.72) 
4.16 

(249.28) 

0.14 
72.00 

150.40 
(3.12) 

1.25 (26.42) 

7.3i 

7.37 

1.25 (33.79) 

Recognised in other Recognised in 
comprehensive statement of profit 

income and loss 

3.16 (10 .85) 
0.55 

(221.4[) 

(2.11) 

11.IR 
116.85 

2.7R 

U.25 
3.16 (101.U.) 

.00 
(3.00) 

3.16 98.26 

As at 

March 31' 2023 

29.13 
4.i.77 

244.55 

370.63 

690.08 

As at 

March 31' 2023 

996.78 

996.78 

As at 

March 31' 2023 

33.46 

29.58 
302.69 

2.87 

535.29 
222.45 

3.12 

1,129.46 

5.91 

5.91 

1,123.55 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

33.98 

33.74 
53.4 1 
3.00 

607.29 
372.85 

0.00 

1,104.27 

13.28 

13.28 

1,090.99 

Asat 

March 31, 2023 

33.46 

29.58 

102.69 
2.87 

535.2() 
222.45 

3.12 

1,129.46 

5.91 
5.91 
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12 Property, plant and equipment 

Gross Block 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 
Aquired through business 

Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at March 31' 2024 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 
Depreciation charge for the year 

Adjustment on account of disposals 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Depreciation charge for the period 
Adjustment on account of disposals 
Balance as at March 31' 2024 

Net block 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 
Balance as at March 31' 2024 

13 Intangible assets 

Gross Block 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 
Aquired through business 
combination 

Additions 
Adjustments during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at March 31' 2024 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Aquired through business 
combination 

Depreciation charge 
Disposal~ 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 
Depreciation charge 
Disposals 
Balance as at March 31' 2024 

Net block 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 
Balance as at March 31' 2024 

* Operating system for computers. 

13A Capital Works-in-Progress 

Particulars 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 
Addition 
Disposals 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

At March 31, 2023 
Addition 

6,: \/msp,os;tls 

fy1/ 

1
lhlii~~ tMarch 31' 2024 

\ \ n _•1·)} 
- '<,if}, ... , .... , 

.!.JE:.IJ~· 

Comput~r Office 
equipment Equipment 

431.27 73.83 

29.75 10.54 
(88.58) (4.82) 

372.48 79.50 
39.47 15.15 

(89.45) (21.26) 
322.50 73.39 

340.11 56.87 
56.75 8.08 

(82.33) (3.99) 
314.53 60.96 

45.84 11.54 
(80.47) (18.68) 

279.90 53.82 

57.95 18.54 
42.60 19.57 

Software* Total 
30.32 30.32 

30.32 30.32 
0.76 0.76 

31.08 31.08 

24.44 24.44 

1.18 1.18 

25.62 25.62 
3.10 3.10 

28.72 28.72 

4.70 4.70 
2.36 2.36 

CWIP Total 

9.21 9.21 

9.21 9.21 

Furniture& Vehicle Right of use Total 
Fixtures 2 asset 

97.66 14.30 447.36 1,064.42 

29.99 13.22 79.20 162.70 
(6.10) (68.53) (168.03) 

121.55 27.52 458.03 1,059.08 
23.84 20.49 179.16 278.10 

(33.94) (27.52) (103.75) (275.92) 
111.45 20.49 533.44 1,061.26 

65.85 3.13 247.21 713.18 
9.64 6.78 92.47 173.72 

(4.75) (35.86) (126.93) 
70.74 9.91 303.82 759.97 
17.00 3.08 75.18 152.63 

(23.03) (10.22) (50.93) (183.33) 
64.71 2.77 328.07 729.28 

50.81 17.61 154.21 299.12 
46.74 17.72 205.37 331.98 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 311 2024 
(All amount~ in t in fokhs, unless stated otherwi5~) 

Note 14: Other non-financial assets 

Particulars 

Advnnces rec(wer"bJc in cash or in kind or for value to be ccccivcd 

Prepaid expenses 

No1e 15: Trade payable 

Particulars 

Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of MS~[Es 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than ~1SM:Es 

Other Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of MSME.s 

Qi) total outi;tandlng dues of creditors other than t'i1S1fEs 

Total 

Trade Payables ae-ein£ schedule as on 31st March,2024 

A..-.a1 As a1 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

79.25 42.66 
495.84 297.38 

575.09 340.04 

As at Asat 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

13.78 10.42 

113.28 279.61 
127.06 290.03 

127.06 290.03 

Particulars Outstandinl!" for followine periods from due date of payment 
Less than 1 year 1~2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 vears 

1/il MS~rn 13.78 
l6il Ocl,ers 102.77 4.1 I 2.08 4.33 
lfiiil Disouted dues- MSME 
I (iv) Disputed dues - Others 

IM Unbilled dues 
Total 116.54 4.11 2.08 4.33 

Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31st March,2023 
ParticuJars Outstandine- for followine periods from due date of payment 

Less Lhan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 vcars 
Im MS~IE 10.42 
(ii) Orhers 271.67 5.47 1.94 0.54 

I (iii) Disouted dues - MS~ffi 
I (iv) Disputed dues - Others 
I (v) Cnbilled dues 

Total 282.09 5.47 1.94 0.54 
#: T,cre arc no cases where no due date of pa}•mem 1s spcc1ficd. 
##: There is no cases of transactions ,vith rhc companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 o r secrion 560 of Companies Act.. 1956. 

Note 16: Dtbt securities (at amortised cost) 
Particul:us As at As at 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

Non-convertible debentures 1,952.13 553.09 

1,952.13 553.09 

Debt securities in India 1,952.13 553.09 
Debt securities outside India 

1,952.U 553.09 

Unamortised Processing Fees 62.85 0.50 
Accrued I nreresr 14.98 53.59 

Particulars Terms of Repayment As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Non-convertible debentures (secured) 

2,000 (March 31, 2023: Nil), @10.851'10, rated, listed, fully pi:1id up, i;cnior, 'lecured, redeemable, t1xablc, non-
CQOVtrtible debentures of face value of t 1,00,CKXJ each, The d:itc of aUounent i,; .\larch 04, 2024. Redeemahle .,t par ''" (Sccu::ed hr ,vay of hrpothecaUon of fir 'lt rank in~ exclusi,•e and ..::onunwn~ char~e cm book debt which shall 1,e August 04, 2025 1,932.13 

maintained at IDS% of prmcip:d mcludin/i!'. interest accrued amount of the dcbenture'I outstandinK) 

SU (.\l.m:h 31, 2U23: .iO), @1111.7.',"". rnted, unhsted, fully paid up. 'lcnior, 'lecurt:d. redecm.,bll'., 1,1x;1blc, nun-
convcrtihlc d ehenturc<; of face- value oft 1,U,00,lXXJ each, The date o i allotment 1,; June, 29, 2lJ21J 

Redecm:1hle " p:11 on 
1,Secwc<i hy wa,· nf hrp<1th('C)ltic1n 1if fir'II r-.1nl.:in~ c-xclmin· and c11nunum~ ch:1r~l; 110 hrn\k dcht \\·hich sh,1l1 he ~5'.'.()9 

maint.tincd at 110% of principal mclu<lin~ interest accrued amount of 1.he debentures outstandin~.) 
June 2<J, .2023 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the pe riod ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts in ~ in lakhs, unless stared o therwise) 

Note 16A: Terms of principal repayment of Debt Securities & Other Borrowings as at March 31 2024 
' Due within 1 year Due between 1 to 2 Due between 2 to 3 

Original maturity 
Interest rate 

No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount 
of loan installn1e instalJmen installn1en 

nts ts ts 

Below 9.00% 12 5.87 12 6.40 11 6.37 

Monthly 9% to 12% 72 2,813.42 50 2,761.50 11 808.52 
12.01% to 15% 370 7,194.53 266 5,397.21 95 2,490.30 
Above 15% 24 476.65 25 528.54 

Quarterly 12.01% to 15% 6 446.97 4 363.64 2 181.82 

Bullet 12.01% [ 0 15% 1 2,000.00 
Above 15% 

Total 484 10,937.44 358 11,057.29 119 3,487.00 

Terms of principal reoavment of Debt Securities & Other Borrowin!!s as at March 31 2023 
' Original maturity Interest rate Due within 1 year Due between 1 to 2 Due between 2 to 3 

ofloan No. of A.mount No. of Amount No. of Amount 
installme installmen installmen 

nts ts ts 

Below 9.00% 24 7.42 18 5.19 12 2.68 
Monthly 9% to 12% 36 875.00 24 687.50 10 402.97 

12.01 % to 15% 237 3,785.00 183 2,619.80 86 979.49 
Quarterly 12.01 % to 15% 59 1,137.91 58 1,253.04 40 947.83 

Bullet 12.01 % to 15% 4 166.67 2 83.33 
Above 15% - - -

Total 361 6,472.00 285 4,648.86 148 2,332.97 

Due beyond 3 Years Total 
No. of Amount 

installrnent 
s 

18.64 
- - 6,383.44 

6 142.00 15,224.04 
- - 1,005.19 
- 992.42 

I 0.20 2,000.20 

-
7 142.20 25,623.94 

Due beyond 3 Y cars Total 

No. of Antount 
installment 

s 

15 3.66 18.95 

1,965.47 
7,384.29 

3,338.78 

- 250.00 
2 3,350.00 3,350.00 

17 3,353.66 16,807.49 



SAT IN PlNSERV LIMIT ED 
Notes to 1hc fmancial s1atcmcnrs for the period cnJcd March 3J' 2024 

(J\11 amount-; int in l:,l,.h::;, unle~.-. St~red otherwise) 

Note 17: Borrowings (other than dcb1 securities) 

Palticulars 

Term loan~ from bank (At amoruscd CosrJ 
Secured# 
Unsecured 

Tern loans from financ1a1 inst1ru1ions{At amoruscd C.oSl) 
Secured## 

Loan from related parries (unscC\1rccl) 
Lease li:ibility 

Bor:owin~:; in Jndi:l 
Bor.ow1ng~ oursidc India 

As a t 

Marc h 31' 2024 

3,230.47 

20,323.77 

218.53 

23,772.77 

23,772.77 

23,772.77 

# Secured by \Va}' of I lrp<•thccation of book dcbr 10 the c~tcn1 of 125%, of 1hc "·alue of the loan outstanding and Secured h) wa,- of HypotJlecatton of Vehicles. 

##Secured bl u1ay of I l)polhccauon of book ckb1 to chc c!Ctcnt of IOO'ln rv 1)3"1• of 1hc ,'21uc of the Joan outsundmg. 

As! :ll 

March 31' 2023 

2942.11 

I0,040.54 

3,350.00 

169.22 

16,501.87 

16,50I.R7 

16,501.87 

###: 'Thcrt: arc no umances where the company h:u, not useJ rhc borrowin~ from banks .tnd financial institutions for the specific puiposc for which tl WI\~ taken at the blllancc shcCL date. 
###Quartcrlr returns ()r statement~ filed by the comp:my with banks or financial institutions a.re in ;tgreemcnt with the books ofaccowH. 

Loar £rom related parucs includes loan from hokhng company which is a rcvolnng ttcdit bcility ag.,tin'lt rora.1 uncuoncd limit of R.s. 3,000 WJ, ( March 31' 2023: Rs. 7,000 lakh). The same is 
rcp2rblc on dcm~d 

Unamortised Proccssln~ Fees 187.37 125.31 

Accrued lntcrest 117.68 50.08 

Reconciliation of lfab ilities a ris ing from financing act..ivities 

The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financmg ac01,1ucs can be classified as folJow:.: 

PaNicul:us I Borrowing:t & Debt 
securities 

Liability against leased 
aHCll 

T otal 

March 31, 20?2 11,154.41 218.05 11,372.47 

Adoption of Ind AS 116 79.20 79.20 

Cash nows: 
- Reparmcn1 (5,834.55) (108.91) (5,943.46) 

- Prc<:cccl1 from m·erdnft filcihry 0.20 0.20 

- Poccecd~ cuhe-.r than overdraft bcahty 11,465.30 11,465.JO 

- Other,- 28.63 28.63 

Non cash: 

• Convcnion of Opnonall~· C.onvcrtiblc, Redeemable Preference Sha~ 

- Forcif.'" exchange 

Amonisation of upfcont fee~ and 01htr) (38.20) (38.20) 

-Others 9.56 (19.12) (9.;6) 

March 31, 2023 16,785.35 169.22 16,954.57 

1\<loption of Ind AS 116 179.16 179.16 

Cash nows: 

-Rcpaymcn1 (15,340.66) (91.84) (15,432.50) 

• Pro:ccds from overdraft facil11y 

- Proceeds othet tll:u, overdraf1 facilitr 23,960.61 23,960.61 

Othc" 28.99 28.99 

Non o.tih: 

• Cor:vers1on of OpLic-.nally Convc:rtihle, Rcdccmable Preference Slu.re5 

- r.;orc1c_,n t'XChangc 

• Amocus11ion of upfroni kcs and others (124.41) (124.41) 

• Odu:n 96.12 (38.02) 58.10 

~hrch 31, 2024 25,406.00 218.52 25,624.52 

Note 18· O ther financial liabilities 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31' 2024 March J I' 2023 

Other pa1":1blc 27.34 14.89 
Expenses p~wablc 215.78 256.60 

Total 243.12 271.49 



SATlN FINSERV LIMITED 
Not_el'( to the financial statements for the period ended Miuch 31' 2024 

(All amounts in t in lakhs, unles:. stilt<:d othcrwi~t') 

Note 19· Provisions 

Particulars 

Provision for compcnsarc<l absences 

PrCJvision foe graruity 
Provision for first loss <le(ault guarantee 

Total 

Asat 

March 31' 2024 

99.82 
22.32 

1,514.08 

1,636.22 

*-Company ha~ made ruov1s1on on. acocum of compens-ate<l abscncci; based on Expert Opinion ;ind t\cturni.l Valuaaon constcleung Has1c Salary of employee:,, 

Note 20· Orhcr non financial liabilities 

Particulars As at 

March 31' 2024 

Statutory dues payable 108.15 

Total 108.15 

\f1.&As& 

I
, oi 

l ' 

\ / 
........_ 

As al 

March 31' 2023 

120.25 
59.87 

1,347.45 

1,527.57 

Asal 

March 31' 2023 

107.67 

107.67 



SATIN l'INSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial ~tatements for the period ended March 3 J' 2024 
(All amounts in tin lakhs, unle~s srnted otherwise) 

21 Equity share capital 

Authorised equity share capital 
15.80,00,()0() (31 March 2023: 140,514,900) F.quit\' shares oft 10 each 

Issued and subscribed 
157557892 (31 ·i\larch 2023: 140,514,859) Equity shares of t"IO each 

Paid up equity share capital 

157557892 (31 >,1.:i.rch 2023: 140,514,859) Equity shares of t!O each 

i) Rights, prcfcrt:nccs and restrictions attached to equity shares: 

As at 

Match 31' 2024 

15,800.00 
15,800.00 

15,755.79 

15,755.79 

15,755.79 

15,755.79 

A_s :ti 

March 31' 2023 

14,051.49 
14,051.49 

14,051.49 

14,051.49 

14,05'1.49 

14,051.49 

The comp:my has only one class of equity shares h:wing par foce value oft "IQ per shMe. Each <:4uity shareholdt::r is eligible for one vote per shi1re held. Any dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directon::, 
1s subject to the approval of shareholders. Dhiclend declared and paid would be in Indian rupee,;. Oi\·idemls are subject to corporate dividend tair;. Jn the event of litpiid:uion of Lhc Comp>my, the hold~rs of 
e9uity share will b: en titled to receiYe remaining assets of the Comp:mr, after distribution uf a.11 preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of e9uity shares held hr 1he 
shareholders. 
The Authorised Share Capital, Issued and subscribed Share Capital is increased due to effect of Merger ofTaraashna Financial Services Limited with Satin Finserv Lnmte<l as approved by NCLT Chandi?;Mh 
Bench by order d::tedj:muary 31, 2023 which has appointed cfate & effective date ,1.rc April 01, 2021 & March 01, 2023 respecO'.-ely. The paid~up share capital of 1he Company has been increased dUii.ng the 
rear as required under the scheme of arrangement appro"ed b)' the NCLT Chand.ih.-arh Benc.h hr order dated January 31, 2023 which has appointed date & effective date arc April 01~ 202 ! & !\larch Ot , 2023 
[C!ipcc.tive.ly. 

ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at reporting year end date 
Equity share capital oft 10 each fully paid up 

Balance :tr t.hc beginning of the year 
Add: rssucd during the year 
Balance at the ct1d of the year 

iii) Equity shares held by holding/promoter company :as at balance sheet date: 

Equity share capital of t 10 each fully paid up 

Satin C:redi1care Network Limi1ed 

No. of shares f No. of shares t 
March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

14,05,14,859 14,051.49 10,25,00,000 
1,70,43,033 1,704.30 3,80,14,859 

15,75,57,892 15,755.79 14,05,141859 

March 31' 2024 

•;• change during 
No. of shares % holding the year 

15,75,57,892 100.00% 0.00% 
15,75,57,892 100.00'¼ 0.00¾ 

14,051.49 
3,801.49 

17,852.97 

MMcb 311 20Z3 

'/, change 
during the 

No. of shares 1/o holding year 

14,05,14,859 100.00°/,l 0.00% 

iv) Shareholders holding more than s•;• of shares of the Company as at balance sheet date: 

March 31' 2024 Much 31' 2023 
Equity sh:.1rc capihtl of t 10 each fully paid up No. of shares •; , holding No. of shares. '/4 holdiug 

S,1.1in Ctedi1carC' ~c1work Limited 15,75,57,892 100.00% 14,05,14,859 100.00% 

v) 

vi) 

15,75,57,892 100.00'¼ 14,05,14,859 100.00¾ 

The Cump,my has neither issued equity sha.rcs pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or any bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the 
current ye.it and five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date except pursuant to scheme of amalgamation as mentioned .1bovc. 

During the year, the company h.i.s received INR 39,99,99,985 against issue of equity shares (No. of shares: 17,043,033) to the holding comp,any (Satin Crcditc.ire Network Liruitcd) @ 
f 23.47 per share having face value of t 10 each. 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts in ~ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

22 Other equity 

Retained earnings 
Statutory reserves @ 
Arnalgamati.on reserve 
Securities Premium 

Total Other Equity 

@ Statutory reserves 

As at 

March 31' 2024 

(910.41) 

412.74 

725.23 
2,295.70 

2,523.26 

As at 

March 31' 2023 

(1,318.99) 

309.79 

725.23 

(283.97) 

The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. This is a restricted reserve 

and no appropriation can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of 

lndia. 

Particulars Amount (Rs. In lac) 
Net assets received 4,526.71 
Equity share capital (as per approved scheme) 3,801 .49 
Amalgamation Reserve 725.23 



SATIN PlNSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(:\ II amounL~ in t in lakhs, vnles!'i stated otherwise) 

Note 23: lntcrcs.1 Income (measured at amortised cost) 

Particulars 

Interest income on portfolio loans 

Interest income on deposit-,, certificate of deposits and commcrcrnl papers 

Note 24: Fees and commission income 

Particulars 

Income frol":l BC: operations and other support ~ervices 
Documentation charges 
Login Fee Income 

Note 25: Net gain on fair value changes 

Particulars 

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments 
at fair value thcough profit or loss 

Mutual Funds 

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 

frur Value Changes: 
-Realised 

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 

Nore 26: Other Income 

P:.uticulars 

i\liscc.Uanem,, income 

lnrcresL income on security deposits 

Net gain on clerecognirion of prnpeny. plant and equipment 
Foreclosure charges received 

Note 27: Finance cost (on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost) 

Particulars 

Interest on borrowings 
I ntcrest on horrowings other than debt securities 
[ntcrcsL on de':>L securiuc:s 

Interest on borrowings from bank 
Other inu . .:rcsr e.'.:pcnses 

Interest expense on lease liability 
Interest on 1axcs 

For the period ended 
March 31' 2024 

6,22.'l.68 
323.82 

6,547.50 

For the period ended 

March 31' 2024 

4,869.04 
255.24 
165.03 

5,289.31 

For the period ended 
March 31' 2024 

64.23 

64.23 

64.23 

64.23 

For the period ended 

March 31' 2024 

206.01 
0.66 

14.67 
18.13 

239.47 

For the period ended 
March 31' 2024 

2.097.02 
35.61 

343.75 
138.37 

28.88 

2,643.63 

Note 28: Impairmcm on financial instruments (on financial assets measured at amortised cost) 

Particulars 
For the period ended 

March 3 1' 2024 

Allowance fnr expected crc<l11 h,)SS 92. 15 
Portfolio lo:ins wriucn off 266.08 

358.23 

-

For the year ended 

March 31' 2023 

3,874.10 

291.68 

4,165.78 

For the year ended 

Ma.rch 31' 2023 

6,160.56 
130.44 
91.43 

6,382.43 

For the year ended 
March 31' 2023 

0.19 

0.19 

0.19 

0.19 

For the year ended 

March 31' 2023 

77.64 
0.72 
7.00 

16.92 

102.28 

For the year ended 
March 31' 2023 

1.363.24 
78.45 

222.57 

78.99 
19.69 

0.59 

1,763.53 

For the year ended 
March 31' 2023 

21.25 
356.80 

378.05 



SATIN FJNSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended rv-larch 31' 2024 

(AH amounrs in , 111 lak.hs, unle~s !ittatcd otherwi~e) 

Note 29: Employee benefit expenses 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

Concribuaon Lo provident and other funds 

Scaff welfare expenses 

Note 30: Depreciation and ::amortization expense 

Particulars 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 

Amon.isacion on intangible assets 

Amortisation on tight of use assets 

Note 31: Other expenses 

Particulars 

Bank charge~ 
Rent 

TraveUing and conveyance 
llcpair and maintainance 

Printing and stationery 
Commumcat1on cost 

Insurance ch1rg·es 

Software & 1T support expenses 
Rates and taxes 

Electricity charges 
Auditor's rcmunerauon• 

Business promotion 
Commission paid*,.. 

Loan Proccssmg Charge, 
Lci,,al and professional charges 

Director s11ung fees 
Balance write off 

Office expenses 
Write off agamst first loss default guarantee 

Pirst loss default guarantee expenses 

Posrage & coJrier 
~liscellancous expenses 

Note*: Auditors rcmunerauon includes paymcnrs as foUows: 

(a) Starutory audit 
~,) Tax audit 

(c) Certification fee and other services 

Total 

.. 1t includes Foreign Currency payment 

For the period ended For the year ended 

March 31' 2024 M:1rch 31' 2023 

5,260.06 4,83:i03 

432.19 435.62 

63.09 47.76 

5,755.34 5,318.41 

For the period ended For the year ended 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

78.16 81.24 

3.10 1.18 

75.18 92.47 

156.44 174.89 

For the period ended For the year ended 

March 31' 2024 Ma,ch 31' 2023 

59.80 91.39 

197.46 179.37 

269.40 181.52 
12.82 17.28 

78.83 77.64 

72.45 80.77 
29.18 70.37 

117.97 167.00 
29.95 110.34 

25.82 37.23 

32.20 20.93 

6.70 5.46 

62.53 42.66 

244.24 127.51 
65.92 83.59 

5.34 4.25 

65.62 37.86 

157.29 129.73 

781.54 671.94 
166.63 26.14 

27.91 24.94 
13.75 6.49 

2,523.35 2,194.41 

9.00 9.00 
3.00 3.00 

20.20 8.93 
32.20 20.93 

9.82 13.56 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts in { in lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

For the year ended 

March 31' 2024 
For the year ended 

March 31' 2023 
Note 32: Earning pet Share 

Net profit/(Loss) for the rear 

\Vcighced average number uf equity shares for EPS 
Par value per share (in RS.) 

Basic Earnings per share (in RS.) 

Nominal value of equity share (<) 
\"v'e.ighted-average number of ec.1u.ity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share 
Diluted Earnings per share (in RS.) 

514.77 
14,94,55,466 

10 
0.34 

10.00 

14,94,55,466 

0.34 

606.30 

14,05,14,859 
10 

0.43 

10.00 
14,05,14,859 

0.43 

Note 33: Tax Expense 

Current tax (including taxes earlier years) 
~:ffojmum alternate tax credit entitlement 

Deferred tax expcnse/(creclit) 

154.94 

(150.40) 
184.21 

188.75 

11 6.86 

(116.85) 
215.09 

215.10 

T'he major componencs of income tax expense and the reconcilialion of expense based on the domestic. effective tax rate of al 27 .82% and the 
reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows: 

Accounting profit before income tax 
At country's starutory income tax rate uf 27.82% 

(March 31, 2023: 27.82%) 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense 
(i) Tax impact of expenses which is non deductible 

(ii) Tax impact on items exempt under income tax 

(tii) lmpa-:t of difference in ta.x rate on cenain items 
(iv) Preliminary expenses allowed 

(v) Earlier year ta.xes 
(vi) Od1cr, 

703.52 
195.72 

4.53 

(11.51) 

188.75 

821.40 
228.51 

0.03 

0.25 

0.01 
(13.71) 

215.10 

Note 34: Leases 

2 

3 

The Corr:pany has taken various office premises under lease arrangements. Generally, the lease tenn varies from 11 months rn 60 months and is 
renewable under munia.lly agreed terms between lessee and lessor and there 1s no exclusive right to the company. The company has considered lease!) 
having imtial lease term of upto 12 months as short term leases as per para 6 of Ind AS 116 and thier expenses have been recognised as Rent under 
note 30. For all other leases having lease term of more than 12 months a right of use asset is recognised witl1 a corresponding lease liability. The right 
of u~e asset is disclosed under Property, Plant and E9ujpcment and lease liability is disclosed under Borrowings. Further disclosures as on .March 31, 
2024 are ~s follows: 

The rable below describes the nature of the Company's leasing activities by type of right-of-use asseL recognised on ha.Janee sheet: 

Particulars 

Total number of leases 

Number of leases considered as short term leases 
No. of dght-of use assets leased 

Range of remain.ing te1m 

Avernge rcmaininR lease term 

No. of leases with extension op1.lons 
No. of leases \vith purchase options 

No. of lea:;es with variable payments linked to an index 
No. of leases with termination options 

Additional information on the right-of-use assets br class of assets is as follows: 

Particulars 

Carrying amount as on March 3 l, 2023 
:\ddicion 

Dcprcciacinn 

Deletion 

Carrying amoum as on 1\farch 31, 2024 

Bifurcation of Lease liabilities in current and non current as follows: 

Particulars 

Current 

. ~9.n;currem 
~btJL ;,,,'<· . 

I 
/ '/ 

/ 

Right of use asset Office Premises 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 
117 184 
81 135 
36 49 

Upto 57 months Upto 55 months 
22 monclJS 8 months 

0 0 

0 0 
0 0 

117 184 

Righ of use asset 
Office Premises 

]54.21 

179. 16 

75. JR 

52.82 
205.37 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 
57.50 68.56 

161.03 100.67 
218.53 169.22 



4 .'\1 31 i\.1:uch 2024 Lhe Company do not ha\ c any comnUtted le:1ses ,vh.ich had nut ret commenced. 

5 The undiscountcd maturity analysis of lease lfr1bitities ar 31 :\forch 2024 is as follows: 

Particulars Lease payments Finance charges Net present values 
Within I year 81.65 24.14 57.50 
1-2 years 67.96 17.26 50.71 
2-3 years 56.44 11.26 45.18 

3-4 years 55.84 5.02 50.82 
4-5 years 14.86 0.54 14.32 
Total 276.75 58.22 218.53 

The und1scounted maturity analysjs of lease tiabilities at 3 1 ~larch 2023 is as follO\vs: 

Particulars Lease payments Finance charges Net present values 
\'Vitl,in I year 84.52 15.97 68.55 
1-2 years 56.62 9.40 47.22 
2-3 years 33.18 4.81 28.37 
3-4 years 17.66 2.26 15.40 
4-5 years 10.27 0.59 9.68 
T otal . 202.26 33.04 169.22 

The Company has elected not to recognise a lease Liability for short term leases (leases of expected term of 12 months or less) or for leases of low value 
asset-;. Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-Line basis. In addition, certain variable lease payments are not permitted to be 
recognised as lease liabilities and are expensed as incurred.The Company does not face a significant liy_uicl_jty risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the 
current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease tiabiJities as and when they faU due. 

The expense re lating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilit-y is as foUows: 

6 Operating leases 
The Company has taken on lease certain assets under operating lease arrangements. The contractual future minitnW11 lease payment obligation in 
respect of these leases are as under: 

Office premises 
Pa.rt.icufars March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

Short tcnn leases 197.46 179.37 
Leases of low value assets 

Variable lease payments -
Total 197.46 179.37 
Min.imu1u lease obligations: 
• wit.hin one year 57.50 68.55 

• Later than one year but aot L~ter tlrnn five years 161.03 100.67 

- Later than five years 

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 298.57 lakh in March 31, 2024 (Rs. 287.50 lakh in March 31, 2023). 

The following are the amow1ts recobinised in profit or loss: 

Particulars March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 75.18 92.47 
lntcrcst expense on lease liabilities 28.88 19.69 
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in otl1er e.-.;:penses) 197.46 179.37 

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 

V.lriable lease payments (included in other expenses) 
Torn] amount recognised in profit or loss 301.52 291.53 

The Company has lease contracts for office buildings used in itS operations. Leases of these buildings generally have lease tenns between 11 months 

and 5 years years. The Company's obHgations under its leases are secured by the lessor's tide to the leased assets. Generally. the Company is resrricted 

from assigning and subleasing the ]eased assets. There are several lease contract.~ that include extension and termination options, which are further 

discussed below. 

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and tcrm.inati(.)n options. These options arc negotiated by management {o pr<widc. 

flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align \l.'ith the Comp,u1y's business needs . .Management exercises significant judgement in 

dctcm1ining wheLher Lhcse cxt.cnsion and termination options arc reasonably certain to be exercised. 

10 The Company docs not have any lease contracts that contains vari~ble payn:iems. 

l J Se1 out hdnw arc rhc uncliscountcd potclllial futurr rental parme.nrs relating tn pcnods following tl1c ex(!rcisc date nf extension and rcrminanon 
options that arc 110t induclccl in the lease tcrrn: 

2024 

Particulars Within five years More than five years Total 

Extension options expected not to be exercised (Count) 
Termination options expected 10 be exercised (Count) 

Extension options expected not co be exercised (Amoun1 in Lakhs) -
Termina.tion options expected to be exercised (Amount Ul Lakhs) 



2023 
Particulars Within five years More than five years Total 
ExtC'nsion opt.io1ts expected not to be exercised (Count) 
·,·crmit1.ition oplio11s cxpccLed to be cxcrciscll (Cnunt) 

Extension options expected not to be exercised (Amount in Lakhs) 

Termination opriuns expected to be exercised (Amount in Lakhs) 

Note 35: Contingent Liabilities not provided for 

No co1u111gl'1H liabilit1e:. :ts un 3 ht t-.brch '.102-1- (pn.:nou:, yl.'.ar Nil). b,ttmatt:d amou1H of curur1c1~ rcm:u11111g Lu be l:.\L'Clltl'd un capHal account ,~ Nil 
(previous year Nil). Ot..hcrcom1111tml'nts 1s Nil as on 31st 1\farch 202..J (previous year Nil). 

35.1 Estimates 

a) Impairment of financidl ,1ssets based on expected credit loss model 

35.2 Classification and measurement of financial asscu; and liabilities 

The clast-ific.ition and measurement of financial a1-sets will be made considering whcLher the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts and 
circumst:inccs existing ar the date of transition, 

fin:U1cial asser.s is measutcd using effective imercst method by assessing its contractu:11 cash flow characteristics only on the basi:- of facts and 

ci.rcumsrn.nces existing at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess e.leme.nts of modified time value of money i.e. the use of effective 

interest method, fuir value of financial :tsscr at the date of trans1l!on shall be the new carrying amount of that .isser. • 1 he measurement cxcmpt1on 
applies for financial liabilities as well. 

Applying a requirement is i.mpractic'1ble when the entity cannot apply it after m::iking every reasonable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply Lhe 
chanb'CS retrospectively if: 

a) ·1·hc effects of lhc rccrospcctivc application or retrospective rest,rcmc11r are not determinable; 

b) The retrospective applic:uion or i:cstarcment requires assumptions about what management's ,mcnt would have been in thal period; 

l'hc retrospccrive application or re1.mspcctive restatement requires significant estimates of amounts and it is 1mpossible to distinguish ob1ectivcly 
i:1formation about those estimates 1.hat existed at that time. 

Note 36: Asset Under Management 

The Company is also in the activity of bu sines::., correspondent for yarious banks and N BFCs. The Company provides first and second loss default 
guarantees in the form of fo,;ed deposits/1rua.rantces for Asscrs Under Management as per busin~ss correspondent agreements signed with various 
banks and NllFCs. 

The mstinmonwise Assets Under Ma11agcrnc11t in books of compan)' for busmcss correspondence activity as on March 31, 2024 arc as foUows: 

March 31' 2024 

Name of Parmer FDR balance for 
AUM 

FLDG 
Y cs B1nk Ltd.# 520.88 
RBL !lank Ltd. 12.02 8.06 
Reliance Commercial Finance Ltd. 756.61 179.91 
Federal Bank 2,907.77 245.61 
IDFC First Dank Ltd 3,954.14 1,292.93 

LJana Small Finance Bank Ltd. 8,380.73 1,132.41 
CS!l Bank Ltd.• 1,452.16 83.02 

17,463.43 3,462.83 
fDR balance includes accn.ied interest. 
# Agreement with YBL has been tem1inated ;md J--URs bcmg credited in our account on 06th April 2024. 

~in addition to FDR for FLOG company has pro\'1ded corporate guar--,mtcc of Rs. 45.26 lac to CSB. 

Note 37: Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 

Particul:1.rs 

·nie pnncipal amount and the interest due thereon remaining iinpaid to any supplier as .lt the end of each 
accounting year. 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in renns of scc1ion 16 of the MSME.D 1\ct, 2006 along with the 
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed da.y during each accountmg year. 

·1 he amount of interest due and payable for the penod of delay in making payment (which have l>cen paid bu1 
beyond the apprnnred d:iy during 1hc }'f":lr) bu, withQut adding die interest spcc1fic<l under the ).fS~fED Act, 
2006. 

The amount of lnteresr aceru1..-d ;:i.nd rcrnammg unpaid at the end of e:ich accounting year. 

The amount of further interest remainmg due and payable even in succeeding_ ycdrs, until 5uch date when the 
ir.terest dues as above are ,lctu;illy paid ro the small enterprise for the purpose of d1saHowance as a deductible 
expenditure under sccbOn 23 of the MSME.D Act, 2006. 

March 3 1' 2023 

FDR balance for 
AUM 

FLDG 

16,741.90 
12.02 108.03 

759.03 169.34 

2,127..16 96.61 
10,874.44 1,312.25 
12,788.76 943.08 

2,296.95 132.40 
45,600.46 2,761.71 

As at As a, 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2021 

13.78 10.42 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(/\JI amounts in ~ in lakhs, unless srntcd uthenvise) 

Note 38: Rdatcd party disclosures 

ln accordance with t.hc rcc1uircments of lndian Accounting Standard - 24 the names of the related parties where conrrol/abilit) co exercise significant 
influence exists, aJong with the rtggrcg,w.-: amount of transactions and year end balances with them as identified e1.nd cerr.ificd by the managemcm are 
given below: 

a. List of related parties and disclosures: 

Description of relationship Name of related parties 
Holding companr Sarin Crcditcarc Network fJmitcd 

Enterprises over which key management personnel and relatives of such pcrso1111cl exercise 

significant influence with whom trnnsacrions have been undertaken: Satin Neo Dimensions Pvt. Led. 

Fdlow subsidiary companies Satin Housing Finance Limited 

Ker managerial personnel and thcir relatives· 

Name of kev manaa-erial personnel DesiP-nation Relatives 
Mr. H PSingh Director Mr. Satvindcr Singh 

l\lrs. Anureet H P Singh 
l\lr. Sumit Mukherjee (till Ma\' 31, 2023) Director & CEO 
i\[r. Partha Mukherjee (cill August j }, 2022)* Director 
Mr. Bhurnesh Khanna (w.e.f. January 19, 20241 \XiTD & CEO 
i\lr. Ariun Bansal ICh.ief Financial Ofbcer 
Mr.R,,hul Garg (till February 28, 2023)* Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Puneet Jollr (till December 19, 2023) Company Secretan· 
l\ls. Sneha Khanduja (w.e.f. I ulv 29 2022 till February 28, 2023)* Comoanv Secretan1 
l\lr. Gurvinder Singh (w.e.f. fanuat1• 20, 2024) Com1,an1· Secretat1· 
* For Taraashna Financial Services Limited 

b Details of transactions with related parties carried out in the ordinary course of business· 

Name of related party Nature of t.ransaction For the period ended For the period ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Mr.HP Singh Personal Guarantee eiven 7,037.50 2,750.00 
Facilitation charges Income 12.00 12.00 
Technology sharing services expense 90.00 128.59 
Payment of rent for office space sharirnr 51.31 45.56 

Satin Creditcare Network Limited Interest Paid 266.69 506.40 
Inter corporate loan taken 2,700.00 1,850.00 
Loan Repaid 6,050.00 2,050.00 
Income from business correspondents 
operations and support sen•ices 1,485.38 1,043.60 

Satin Neo Dimensions Pvt. Ltd. Inrerest income on loan 2.08 11.72 
Reoaymcnr received aP"ainst loan 39.33 52.46 

Mr. Sumir Mukherjee (rill i\lav 31, 2023\ Remuneration 17.60 105.60 
Mr. Partha i\fokherjce (till AultUst 3 1, 2022) Remuneration 17.50 
i\[r. Bhm•ncsh Khanna (w.e.f. fanuat1• 19, 2024 ) Remuneration 32.39 -
i\lr.Arjun Bansal Remuneration 27.80 23.49 
i\lr.Rahul Garg (rill Februarv 28, 2023) Remuneration 2 1.08 
l\lr. Puneet lollv (rill December 19, 2023) Remuneration 12.74 15.08 
ills. Sneha Khanduja (w.e.f. July 29 2022 till 
Februarv 28, 2023\ Remuneration 3.1 8 
i\lr. Gurvin<ler Singh (w.e.f. Januarv 20, 2024) Rtmuntrntion .,28 -

c. Outstanding balances with related parties in ordinary course of business: 
Name of related party Nature of transaction As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Satin Creditcare Network Ll1nited 'Fc:es for corporate guarantee 
- 4.24 

Inter coq,omte loan Payable 3,350.00 
Satin \!eo Dimensions Pvt. I ,td. inter corporate loan Receivable ~ 39.33 

Accrued Interest Receivable U.55 

Note: 

I. ~Jr. 1-1. P Singh, director of the. c<Jmpany has givc::.n pcrson:il gu:'lrantce for tc::.1111 loan taken from hank. Umstanding as of ,\larch 31, 2024 1s Rs. 
8,4 18.24 I .akh (Previous Year: 3,965.47 J .akh) 

d. Key management personnel rernuneration includes the following expenses: For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Short-tcnn employee bt:nefits 93.81 185.93 
Post-emolorment benefits (3.59) 5.63 
Other Ion-'!, term benefits (7.30) I 1.15 

\"j~ tal ~~ ncration 
82.92 202.71 

I i) 
'§' 
N 

' /.~r:rt-l··" 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts in ~ in lak.hs, unless staled otherwise) 

Note 39: Employee Benefits 

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (l nd AS) - 19 on Employee Benefit as under : 

Defined contribution plans 
Provident fund 
The Company has made~ 432.19 lakhs (March 31, 2023 ~ 435.62 lakhs) comribut.ion in respect of provident fund and otl1er funds. 

Defined benefit plans 

A Gratuity 
The Company has a defined benefit graniit}' plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per tl1e provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 
1972. The liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. The scheme is funded by the Company and is managed by 
Life Insurance Corporation of India ("UC") and ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd. jointly. 

Risks associated with plan provisions 

Actual salary increases wiU increase the Plan's liability. 

Salary increases Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future 
valuations will also increase the liability. 

lf Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual 
Investment risk investment return on assets lower than the discount rate 

assumed at the last valuation date can impact tl1e liability. 

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can 
Discount rate 

increase the plan's liability. 

Mortality & disabiliry 
Acnial deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than 
assumed in me valuation can impact the liabilities. 

Actual withdrawals prm~ng higher or lower tl1an assumed 

Withdrawals withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent 
valuations can impact Plan's liability. 

(i) Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under: 

Particulars I As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
Present value of obligation 83.06 118.01 
Fair value of plan assets 60.74 58.14 
Net obli2ation reco2nised in balance sheet as provision I (22.32) cs9.87l I 

(ii) Amount reco2nised in the statement of profit and loss is as under· 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
Current service cost 27.49 44.75 
Net interest co~t / (income) 4.42 (4.71) 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 31.91 40.04 
Actuarial (gain)/loss reco~sed during me year 4.49 15.04 

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income 36.40 55.08 



SA TIN FINSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts in ~ in Jakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

(iii) Movement in the present value of defmed benefit oblie-ation recognised in the balance sheet is as under 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 118.00 
Current senrice cost 27.49 
Interest cost 8.72 
Pas, service cost including curtailment gains/losses -
Benefits paid (70.54) 
AcrJarial loss/ (gain) on obligation 

Actuarial (gain)/Joss on arising from change in demographic assumption 3.81 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assump.tion 2.73 
Actuarial fr..rain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment (7.15) 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the vear 83.06 

(iv) Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets): 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 
Funds managed by insurer 100% 
Total 100% 

(v) Movement in the plan assets recognised in the balance sheet is as under 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 58.14 
Actual return on plan assests 2.69 
Employer's contribution 59.00 
Benefits paid (59.09) 
Actuarial loss/(l!ain) on plan assets -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 60.74 

(vi) Actuarial assumptions 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 
Discounting rate 7.12% 
Fmure salary increase 4.00% 
Retirement age (years) 60.00 
Withdrawal rate 

Up to 30 years 40.00% 
From 31 to 44 years 20.00% 
A hove 44 years I0.00% 

Weighted average duration 3.63 
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of !ALM (2012-14) 

As at March 31, 2023 

113.36 

44.75 

1.28 

-
(52.74) 

-
(1.95) 

13.31 
118.00 

As at March 31, 2023 

100% 

100¾ 

As at March 31, 2023 

82.43 

2.51 

25.94 

(52.74) 

-
58.14 

As at March 31, 2023 

7.39% 

4.00% 
60.00 

56.21% 

43.75% 
50.00%, 

1.36 

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age. To provide for these 
ever:tualitics, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Monality (2012-14) Ultimate table. 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts in ~ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability 

Particulars 
Impact of the change in discount rate 

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 

- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 

- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 

Impact of the change in salary increase 

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 

- impact du~ to increase of 0.50 % 

- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

83.06 118.00 

(2.15) (7.91) 
2.26 8.79 

83.06 118.00 

2.32 9.05 

(2.22) (8.19) 
. . 

Sens111vmes due to mortality and withdrawals are not matenal and hence impact of change due to these 1s not calculated . 

Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not 
applicable. 

(viii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation As at March 31, 2024 
0 to 1 year 10.09 

1 to 2 year 8.96 

2 to 3 year 8.33 

3 to 4 year 7.81 

4 t0 5 year 6.60 

5 to 6 year 5.23 
6 year onwards 36.04 

B Compensated absences (non-funded) 

(i) Amount recoe:nised in the balance sheet is as under: 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 

Present value of obligation 99.82 
Fair value of plan assets -

Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 99.82 

(ii) Amount recoenised in the statement of profit and Joss is as under: 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 

Total service cost 56.21 

Net interest cost on defined benefit obligation 8.89 

Net actuarial (!!ain)/loss recognised <luring the rear (2.93) 
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 62.17 

~•''~ HI 

-, 

•ct ·j -.~Ci ·~ (rhis space has been lift blank intmtional!J) 

As at March 31, 2023 
3.03 

2.38 

2.55 

3.34 

3.72 

3.13 

99.87 

As at March 31, 2023 

120.25 

-
120.25 

As at March 31, 2023 

54.74 

1.93 

(2.36) 

54.30 
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Note 40: Financia1 instruments 

A Financial assets and liabilities 

The carrying amoums and fair values of financial instruments by cacegorv :ire as follows 
Particulars 

Notes to schedule 

Financial assets measured at amortised cosl 
C.ash an:l Cash ec1uhra1enrs 4 
Bank balances ot.her than cash and cash equivalents 5 
Receivables 6 
l .oans 7 
Invesanenc 8 
Security deposits 9 
Other financial assets 9 
Total 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Payable~ 15 
Debt securities 16 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 
Other fi:uncial liabilities 18 
Total 

B Fair values hierarchy 

As at As al 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

5,485.86 3,878.47 
3,959.69 3,161.44 

337.64 298.33 
32,192.22 22,126.34 

313.38 100.39 
24.53 29.13 

871.82 660.95 
43,185.14 30,255.05 

127.06 290.03 
1,952.13 553.09 

23,554.24 16,332.65 

243.12 271.49 
25,876.55 17,447.26 

The fair value of financial instrwnents as referred to in note (A) above has been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation 
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Lcvcl 1 measurementsJ and lo,vest priority to 
unobservable inputs !Level 3 measurements]. 

The categories used are as foUows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active ntarket; 

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and 
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on obsen,a.ble market data (unobservable inputs). 

Company does not have any assets measured at fair value. 

8 .1 Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost 

Fair value of instruments measured ,u amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as fo11ows, these fair values are cakufa.ted using Level 3 input.s: 

Particulars As at March 31' 2024 As at March 31' 2023 
Carryini;: value Fair value Carrying value Fair value 

Financial assets 

Cash and Cash equivalents 5,485.86 5,485.86 3,878.47 3,878.47 
Bank balances o ther t.han cash and cash equivalents 3,959.69 3,959.69 3,161.44 3,161.44 
Receivables 337.64 337.64 29833 298.33 
Loans 32,192.22 33,781.65 22,126.34 23,299.24 
Investment 313.38 313.38 100.39 100.39 
Security Jeposits 24.53 24.53 29.13 29.13 
Other fiaanciaJ assets 871.82 871.82 660.95 660.95 
Total 43,185.14 44,774.57 30,255.05 31,427.95 
Financial liabilities 

Payables 127.06 127.06 290.03 290.03 
Dehl serurities 1.952. 13 1,952.13 553.09 553.09 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 23,554.24 23.554.24 '16,332.65 16.332.65 
C )rher financial liabilities 243.12 243.12 271.49 271.49 
Total 25,876.55 25,876.55 17,447.26 17,447.26 

The mar:agement assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets. trade payables and other 
firnrncial liabilities approximate their respecti,•e carrying amounts largely due to the short-term marnrities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets 
and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current Lra.nsaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or 
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

(i) Long term fixed-rate rcccivahlcs are evaluated by the. Company based on parameters such as in.te.rest rates, individual crc<litwortruness of the customer and otht.!r 
market risk factors. 

(Li) The fair values of the Company's fixed imerest bc,uing lrntns and receivables :,1rc clctcrn1i11cJ by applying discounted cash flows CDCP') method, u,ing discount 
rate that reflects Lhc issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at .!\Larch 31, 2024 was assessed to be 
insibrnific::int. 

(lii) The fair values of die Company 6.xcrl inten.:st•bearing dchl securities, borrowings antl suhor<Unaltcd liabiLitics are delcrmine<l hy applying discuume<l cash Aows 
f D(F') method, usll1g Jisc(lunr rate that rcnccts die issuer', borrowing r,ltC .ts ~It the end of the reporting period. The own non-pcrfom1.111cc nsk JS at i\1.trch 31, 
2024 was asse5sed to be insignificant. 



SATIN FLNSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial s tatements for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts rn ~ in lakhs, unless sta1cd othen.visc) 

Note 41: Financial risk marn1gement 

i) Risk Managemen1 
11,e Company's activioes expose 1t to market risk, liguidir.y nsk and crecUt nsk. The Compan}/s board of directors has overall rcsponsibilit)' for the esrnblishment 
and oversight of the Company risk m:inagemcnt framework. The Company's risk art! managed by a treasury department under policies approved by the board of 
direcrors. The board of direcmr"i provide.s written principles for o,·erall risk management. This note explains the -;ources of risk which the c:ntnv 1s exposed to and 
how the enricy manages the nsk and the related 1.mpacr in the:. financial st:uements. 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement ~lanagement 

CrediL nsk Cash and cash equivalents, loans, Ageing analysis. Bank deposits, 
financial assers measured al amornsed dive.rsificatJon of 
cost. asset base, credit 

ljmirs and collartral. 

ljquiditr risk Borro\\~ngs, debt securities, Roiling cash flow Availability of 
subortlinarerl liabilities, and other foreCMtS. committed credit 
fimmci~I liabilities. lines and borrowing 

facilities. 

1\Jarket risk - interest rate: Borrowings, debt securities and Sensitivity analysis. Negotiation of 
subordinated liabilities at vanable raLes. terms that reflect 

the market facto~. 

J\larke1 rhk • security price Investments in equity $CCuricies, mutual Sensit.iv1ry analysis Diversification of 
funds, certificate of dcposils and ponfolio, with focus 
commercial papers on stn.tcg1c 

investments 

TI,c C:ompany>s risk managemem 1s earned out under the policies approved by the board of drrectors. The board of directors provides wnrten pnnc1ples for 
overa!J nsk management, as well as poLicics covering specific areas, such as foreib'Il exchange risk, interest r2.tc risk, credit risk and im·estment of excess Hquidity. 

A) Credi t risk 
Crecfa rhk is the risk that a counterpart}' fails to discharge itS obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit risk is mfluenced mainlr b)' ca,h and 
ca!-h equivalents, loan assesL~, and other financial assets measured at amortised co~t. The Compan)' continuously monitors defaults of customers and other 
counterpuries and incorporates this infonnation into its credit risk controls. 

a) Cred.it risk management 

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. lnlcrnal credit rating 1s pcrformt".:d for ~ch class of financial mstt'\Jments 
with different characLCristks. The Company assigns the foUowing crcclit ratings to each class of financia1 assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors 
specific 10 ,he dass o f financial assets. 

(i) Lo\\ credit risk on fin:mcial reporting clnte 

(ii) Moderate credit nsk 
(iu) I hgh credit risk 

The Company provides fo, expec1cd credit loss based on the followmg: 

Asset Company 
Low credit risk 

'Moderate credit risk 

High credi, risk 

Basis of categorisation 

Cash and cash equivalents, other b:1nk 
balances, inYestmenis. loans and other 
financial assets 

Loans, trade receivnbles and otJ,cr 
financial assets 

Loans and other financial assets 

Provision for expected credit loss 

12 month expected credit loss 

Life time cxpecled credit loss or 12 
month expected credi1 loss 

Life rime expected credit loss fully 
provided for 

Based on busincs.s environment tn which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fai]s 10 make parmenls within 
the agreed time period as per contrnct. Loss rates reflecting defaults arc based on acn1aJ credit loss experience and considermg differences between currcni and 
historical econum1c conditions. 

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. such as a borro,vcr declaring bankn1ptcy or a litibrat..ion decided against the Company. 
rlbc Company continues to cn,1,,ragt.:. with parties whose bal~ncc~ are written off and attempts to enforce reparmem. Reco,·encs made arc recognised 1n stati:mem 
of profir and loss 

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk* 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

(i) Low credit risk on financial reporting date 

Bank Balance in current account!I & 111 F1xccl Deposits 4,885.08 3,199.71 

ltutk b.tlanccs other rhan abO\ e 3,959.69 3,161.44 

Sccu,cy deposits 24.5"\ 29.13 

Other fmancial :1ssecs 871.82 660.95 

lnvcsrment 313.38 100.39 

Rccc.V!lhlcc; 337.64 29831 

lnans 30.769.54 21,259.10 

(ii) Moderate credi t r isk 711.87 527.41 

;~ H igh crcdi1 risk 1,379.65 916.S0 

~;'es\ rcprcsenr eross cam·mg v.tlucs of financrn.l ~sscts. \\1thom dcJun1on for c~petted credit Jo,;;scs 

J J 



SATrN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the finandal statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts in l jn bkhs, unless stated otherw1se) 

Cash :rnd cash equivalents and bank deposits 

Credit risk related co casb and cash ec1uhralems and bank deposirs 1s managed by only ~Kceptrng highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accoimts U1 
different banks -across the country. Raungs Me monirored periodically. 

Receivables 

Tm.de receivables measured at amorfrted cost and credit risk related to these are managed b}' monitoring the rccovcrab1lity of such amounts concinuo\lsl)'. 

Other financial assets 

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans and adnmces to employees, security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these o ther 
financial assets is managed by monitoring rbe n:covetability of such amounts continuously. 

Loans 

Credit risk related to borrower's are mitigated by considering collateral's/bank guarantees/letter of ctedit, from botrower1s. The Company closely monitors the 
credit-worthjncss of the borrower's through internal systems and project appraisal process to ;:1ssess the credit cisk and define credit limits of borrmver, tllereby, 
Limiting the credit risk to pre~cakulated amounts. These processes include a Jet:ailed appraisal methodology. identification of risks and su.imble structuring and 
credit risk mitigation measures. T he Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts loan receivables that become past due and default 
is considered to have occurred when amounts receivable become 90 days pasr rlue. 

b) Expected credit losses for Unanda) assets other than loans 

i) Company provides for expected credit losses on financial assets by assessing individual financial insttumenL"i for expectation of any credit losses: 

- ~or cash and cash cquivalenrs and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of 
cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and bank deposits is evaluated as very low. 

- For in,·estments - Considering the investments are in mutual funds, certificate of depsoits and Government securities, crediL risk is considered low. 

- For loans comprising security deposits paid - Credit risk is considered low because the Company is in possession of the underlying asset. 

- For other financial assets - Credit risk is evaluated based on Company's knowledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and loss alJowancc is measured for 
12 month ex.peered credi1 losses upon initial recognition and proVlde for lifetime expected creCUt losses upon sigruficant increase in credit risk. The c:ompany does 
not have any expected loss based impairment recognjsed on such assets considering their low creilit risk nature, though the reconcil.iacion of expected credit loss 
for all sub categorie!l of financial assets (other than loans) are disclosed below: 

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit Carrying amount 
As at carrying amount probability of losses net of impairment 
March 31, 2024 at default default provision 

Bank Balance iri current accounts & in Fi.xed Deposits 4,885.08 0% 4,885.08 
Bri nk balances other than above 3,959.69 0% 3,959.69 
Security deposits 24.53 O¾ 24.53 
Other financial assets 8TJ.82 0% 871.82 
lnvestm(:nl 313.38 0% 313.38 
Receivables 337.64 0% 337.64 

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit Carrying amount 
As at carrying amount probability of losses net of impairment 
March 31, 2023 at default default provision 

Bank Saia.nee in current accounts & in Pixed Deposits ~.199.71 0% 3,199.71 
Bank balances other than above 3,161.44 0% 3,161 .44 
Security deposits 29.13 0% 29.13 
01her fin:rnciaJ ac;sets 660.95 QO/o 660.95 
lnvesoncnt 100.39 0% 100.39 
Receival:les 298.33 0% 298.33 

ii) The corrpany has off books portfolio of loans which is being managed on behalf of principle partnc:rs. The company has prmide fixed deposits to Lhc principle 
partners against first loss defauJ guarantee. The said fixed deposits are Uen marked to the concerned principle partners. 
The company records first loss default guarantee liahlilty h.tsed on contract terms with each principle partners as on each reporting date. Along with first los.s 
default g.1aranrcc liab1lity the company also recognzie loss allnwancc measured on lifetime expected crctlit loss as on each reporting dace. 

iii) Expected credit loss for loans 

The Companr follows a 'thrce~stagc' model for tmp;\irmenr hast!d on changes 111 credo quality since initial recogninon as summarised below: 

1\ fina.nc.al tnstrumcnr that is not credit-impaired on initial rccot,'llltion is cfoss1fied in 'Stage l' and has 1rs credit risk continuouslv monitored by rhc Comp:my i.e 
the default in rcpa~•mcnt ic; within the range nfO rn 'l,0 days. 

It:,. s1gnificaut increase in credit risk ('SlCR') since ini tial recognition i!. idcn1ificd, Lhc financial instrument is moved tu jStagc 2' bt11 is not yet JcemcJ to be crccla­
imp:iirccl 1.c. the dcfoult tn repayment 1s within the range of 11 to <JO daJ~. 

lf the firu.nc.ial instrumcm 1s cred11-impaircd, the financial 111s trumcnl is then moved to 'Stage 3' i.e. the default in repayment is more rhan 90 <lays. 

The Expected Credi, I .ass (ECL) 1s measured at 12-mnndi ECI for Stage I loan ,isscts and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and S1agc 3 loan assets. 

I:~

\/\ /½>l41~abiliry of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Dcfauli 

( I 
~ 
~ 

DI UII : 

A~ 
~~ 

ECL is rhe produn 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts ir_ t in lakhs, unless staled otherwise) 

As a pa1t of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a v;irie1-y of insmnces that may indk:m:: unUkeliness ru pay. 
When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event. should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 
for ECL calculations or wheLher Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include: 

(i) The borrower is deceased 

(ii) A maerial decrease in the underlying collateral vnlue where the recovery of the loan is expected from the sale of th t: colla1eral 

(iii) /\ material decrease in the borrower's mmover or the loss of a nrn1or customer 

(jv) The borrower requesting emergency fundtng &om the Company 

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product 
of d,e Prob•biJir:y of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default. 

r-orward-looking economic information (jnduding managemmt overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD ,md LG D. The 
assumprjons un<lerl)ing the expc.-:ctt::d credit loss are monitored and revie\,·ed on an ongoing basis. 

Changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans from beginning to end of reporting period: 

Particulars Stage 1 (0-30 days) Stage 2 (31-90 days) 
Stage 3 (More than 

90 Davsl 
Gross carrying amoum as at f\llarch 31, 2022 15,351.49 486.73 899_99 
Assets originated or purchased 11,089.59 61.25 166.09 
Net u·ansfcr between stages 

Transfer to stage I 115.96 (77.28) (38.67) 
Transfer to stage 2 (398.29) 400.76 (2.48) 
Transfer to stage 3 (218.95) (138.72) 357.67 

Assets dccccognised or repaid (excludmg wme offs) (4,680.71) (205.33) (!09.31) 
Write . offs (356.80) 
Gro3s carrying amoum as at March 31, 2023 21,259.10 527.41 916.50 
Assets originated or purchased 18,357.77 !04.74 94.38 
Net transfer between stages 

Transfer to srage I 87.21 (3620) (51.01) 
Transfer to stage 2 (612.97) 617.72 (4.75) 
Transfer to stage 3 (542.09) (241.23) 783.32 

Assets dr.:rccognised or repaid (excluding wrir.c offs) (7,779.47) (260.57) (192.26) 
Wcitc - offs (266.08) 
Gross carrying amount as at 1vlarch 31, 2024 30,769.54 711.87 1,280.10 

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period: 

Reconciliation of loss aUowance Stage 1 (0-30 days) Stage 2 (31-90 days) 
Stage 3 (Moce than 

90 Days) 
Loss allowance on March 31, 2022 80.17 112.52 362.75 
lncrcase of provi5ion due to assets originated or purchased during the period 16.28 13.46 74.24 
Ner transfer between Stages -

T~,m.sfer to stage I 31 .49 (15.84) (15.65) 
Transfer to stag:e 2 (5.31) 6.31 (1.00) 
Transfer ro stage 3 (2.64) (34.39) 37.03 

Jmpact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages during the rear (62.08) 65.23 151.27 
Asse:s dcrccogniscd or collected (7.59) (27.80) (201.75) 
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 50.32 119.48 406.88 

lncrcasc o f provision due to assers originated or purchased during the period 24.61 18.48 34.34 
Net transfer between stages 

Transfer to stage 1 31.13 (8.27) (22.85) 
Tiansfer to stage 2 (4.78) 6.89 (2.11) 
Tram fer ro stage 3 (4.61) (57.02) 61.62 

Impact of HCL on exposures transferred bcn,..-cen stages during the year (40.2<J) 69.60 189.45 
Assets derecognised or collected (15.13) (23.56) (165.36) 
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 41.25 125.61 501.97 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial st.aten1t"nts for the pcrjod ended March 31' 2024 

(All arnoL1□ts in ~ 10 lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

B) Liquidity risk 

(i) 

Liquidity risk is the risk tJ,at the Comp,my will encounter difficulry in meeting tbe obligations associated \\.,frb JtS financial liabilities that are sctlied by delivenng 
ca.sh or another financial a~stt. Tbe Co1.npany's approach to managing ljt.tuidity is co ensure as far as possible, th~t it wHl have :;ufficicnt li901dlty to mecL it-; 
liabilities when 1·hey rue due. 

The Company maintains felxibility jn fonding by maintainJng aYailabiliLJ' under cormnincd credit lines. J\faoagement mun.hors the. Company's LitfUidity positio ns 
(also compdsing the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash ec1uivalenrs on the bas.is of expected cash flows. 111e Company also takes into account 
liquidity of the market i□ which the entity opcrntes, 

Financing arrangements 

The Commmv has access to t.he foJIO\l,·ing undrawn borrowing fad Uties at the end of the reoor tinrr oeriod· 
Particulars Total facility Drawn Undrawn 
March 31' 2024 - -
- Expiring Ucrond one year 3,000 - 3,000 
- Ex.pi cine within one rear l,HJO 600 500 
Total 4,100 600 3,500 

March 31' 2023 
- Expiring beyond one year 7,000 3,350 3,650 
- Expiring within one )'Car -
Total 7,000 3,350 3,650 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
Norcs to the fir.ancial srn.rc1ucn1s for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(t\11 anwunrs in { in bkhs, unless srnre<I o therwise) 

(ii) MaLuritics of fmancial assets and liabilities 

The rnbles below analyse the Comp;'l.n}' financial asset_'! :md liabi!inc~ mro relevant maturity groupings ba:-cd on rhe::1r contractual nrntutitie~ 

The amounts disclo:-c<l in the rnblc are the cont..rnctua! undiscoumcd ca:-h flows: 

As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 yc.ir 2-3 year 

Financial assets 
Cash and (;'I.sh cc1t1ivalents 5,485.86 

'13:mk b:i.k.nces other than cash ;md c.1sh cyuivalems 587.88 3,371.81 
Rccdv,1.b]cs 337.64 

Investments 3 13.38 
Loans 13.1 70.08 10,935.63 7,165.82 
O ther fimncial assets 8%.35 

Total undiscountcd financial assets 20,477.80 11,249.01 10,537.63 

Fimmcial liabilfrics 

Debt sccucicic~ 1,952.13 -
Borrowings (other rhan debt securities bul including interest accrued) 11,249.96 10,655.19 1,507.89 
Payables 127.06 
Other financial liabilities 243.12 
Total undiscountcd financial liabilities 11,620.14 12,607.32 1,507.89 
Net undfacounted financial assecs/(liabilities) 8,857.66 (1,358.311 9,029.75 

Asat 
March JI, 2023 Less tfom 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 

Fin ancial assets 
Cash and Cash equivalents 3,878.47 
'Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 50.03 3,111.41 

Receivables 298.33 
Investment 100.39 
Loans 7,690.24 7,677.00 4,996.57 
(Jrher fim.ncial a~scn, 690.08 
Total widiscountcd financial assets 12,607.15 10,788.41 5,096.96 
Financial liabilities 

Debr securirie:- 553.09 
Borrowinis (other than debt securities hut including interest accrued) 6,?33.69 4.65126 2,337.80 
Payables 290.03 -
O ther finrncial liabilitic$ 271.49 
TotaJ undfacountcd financial liabilities 7,148.30 4 651.26 2,337.80 
Net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 5,458.86 6,137.16 2,759.16 

C) 'Market risk 

a) Interest rate risk 
i) Lfobilities 

More than 3 years Total 

5,485.86 

3,959.69 

337.64 

313.38 

1589.52 32,861.06 

896.35 

1,589.52 43,853.98 

1,952.13 

359.73 23,772.77 
127.06 

243.12 
359.73 26,095.08 

1,229.80 17,758.90 

More than 3 years Total 

3,878.47 
3,161.44 

298.33 

100.39 
2,339.21 22,703.02 

690.08 
2,339.21 30,831.73 

55309 
3,378.73 16,401.48 

290.03 

271.49 
3,378.73 17,516.09 

(1,039.52] 13,315.65 

The Compan(s policy l::. 1,, minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. r\t l\Jarch 31, 2023, the Company is exposed 10 changes in market interest rares 
th rough bmk borrowings at variable inrercst rares. The Companr's investments in fo..;cd deposits -all pay fixed interest rates. 

lntt!re~t rat~ nSk cxposur~ 

Bdow is tht: o,·erall exposure of the Compam· to imcrcsr ran! nsk: 

Paniculars 
As at As :at 

M;1.rcl1 31, 2024 Mr.,.rch 31, 2023 
Variable: rate lfabilities 

Borrowing-. other than d<.·ht sccmitic:. 10,007.77 l0,4i0.2l 

Fixed rate liabilities 

Debt Sccocides 1,952.13 553.09 
Borrowings other 1han debt scc.uriti~ 13,546.48 5,862.44 

Total 25,506.38 16,885.74 

Sensitbi'ity 

'Scnsuiviiy, of profit or los~ m borrowing ha,ing fixed interest rntcs, 1s not appLicable. 

ii) Assets 

The Companr's fixi'd deposits are carried at amortised cost and arc fixed rate deposits. They are therefore 001 suhjcct 10 interes1 rate risk as defined in Jnd AS 107, since neither ,he 
carrying amount nor the future cash Rows will 0uctuate because of a change in market interest rares. 



SATIN FJNSERV LIMITED 

Notes to (he financi.11 statements for 1J1c period ended March 31' 2024 
(AU amounts in ~ in \akh!>, unless srated otherwise) 

Note 42: Capital Management 

The Comp,mr's capital mnnagcmcnr objecrh:es are to ensure the Company's abilitJ to connnuc as a goin_g concern. to comp!}' with cxternallr imposed rnpital rel1ufrcmt'.nr and 
m,1intain strong credit rntings an<l to provide an adequate return to shareholders. 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of ct.1uitr less cash and c::i.sh equivalent-, as preseme<l on the face of balance sheet. 

J\1.\nagcmenc assesses the Company's capital requirements in or<lcr 10 mainrnin an efficient overaU firnmcing s1·rucrure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the 
subordin.n ion ic,-cls of the Company's various cla8~es of debt. The Company manages the capital .,;;m,cturc :.i,nd makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions 
and rhe risk charactcrbtic.s of the underlying assets. In order to mainrain or adjust lhc capital structure, the Company m::i.y :1djust the amount of dividends paid m sharcholdt.·rs. rerum 
capital ro shareholders, issue new shares. or sci! assets to reduce debt. 

Particufars March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 
Borrowicgs (other than debt securities) 23,772.77 16,501.87 
Debt Securities 1,952. 13 553.09 
I .ess: Cash :md Cash Equivalents (5,485.86) (3,928.50) 
>Jet debt+c 20,239.04 13,126.46 

Equity Share Capiral 15,755.79 14,051.49 
Other fa.:uity 2,523.26 (283.97) 
Total equity 18,279.05 13,767.51 
Ncl debt to equity ratio /Gearing ratio 1.11 0.95 
* ::-,Jet debt includes debt secumies + borrowing mher than debt securities + sub-ord111ated liabli1:1es + interest accrued . cash and cash equivalents - bank balances other than cash & 
cash tquiva.lents( non lien marhd). 

(lliis space has bcm left bla11k i11lmtional/y) 



SATIN FINSERV ( lMITED 
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(1\lJ amounts in < in lakh~. unless slated otherwise) 

Note 43: Marnrity analysis of asse ts and liabilities 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabiLi tics analysed according to when they arc expected LO be recovered or settled. 

March 31' 2024 

Within More than Within 
12 months 12 months 

Total 
12 months 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash cqujvalents 5,485.86 5,485.86 3,878.47 
Bank balances o ther than cash and cash ec.1u.ivalents 587.88 3,371.81 3,959.69 50.01 
Rt.-ce.ivables 337.64 - 337.64 298.33 
Investment 313.38 313.38 
1.rnms 12,501.24 19,690.98 32,192.22 7,113.56 
O ther financial assets 896.35 896.35 690.08 

19,808.97 2.>,376.17 43,185.14 12,030.47 
N on Financial assets 

Current Lax assets (net) 923.73 923.73 -
Deferred tax assets (net) 1,090.99 1,090.99 -
Property, plant and equipment 57.50 274.48 331.98 68.55 
Other intang ible assets 2.36 2.36 -
Capital \xr:IP 9.21 9.21 -
O ther non financial assets 575.09 575.09 340.04 

644.16 2,289.20 2,933.36 408.59 
TOT AL ASSETS 20,453.13 25,665.37 46,118.50 12,439.06 

LIABILITIES 

Financial Liabilities 

Payables 

Trade Payables 

total outstanding dues of MSMEs 13.78 13.78 10.42 
total outstanding dues o f creditors o ther than M:SMEs 113.28 113.28 279.61 
Debr securities 1,952.13 1,952.13 553.09 
Borrowings (o ther than dcb1 secudtics) 11,468.48 12,304.29 23,772.77 6,134.08 
O ther financial liabifaies 243.12 243.12 271.49 

11,838.66 14,256.42 26,095.08 7,248.69 
Non Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 29.66 1,606.56 1,636.22 6.55 
Other non financial liabilities 108.15 108.15 107.67 

137.81 1,606.56 1,744.37 114.22 
TOTAL Liabilities 11,976.47 15,862.98 27,839.45 7,362.91 

Net 8,476.66 9,802.39 18,279.05 5,076.15 

March 31' 202.> 

More than 
12 months Total 

3,878.47 

3,11 1.41 3,161 .44 

298.33 

100.39 100.39 

15,012.78 22,126.34 

690.08 

18,224.58 30,255.05 

996.78 996.78 

1,123.55 1,123.55 

230.57 299.12 

4.70 4.70 

-
340.04 

2,355.G0 2,764.19 
20,580.18 33,019.24 

10.42 

279.61 

553.09 

10,367.79 16,501.87 

271.49 

10,367.79 17,616.48 

1,521.02 1 ,527.57 

107.67 

1,521.02 1,635.24 

11,888.81 19,251.72 

8,691.37 13,767.52 



SAT[N FINSERV UM[l'ED 
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended Mmch 31' 2024 

(1\ll amounts in tin ln~hs, unless srntetl othcrwi~e) 

Note 44: Corporate Social Responsibility 

A~ per Section 135 of the Compa1lics Act. 2013. a company, meeting rhc applicability threshold. neeJs to spend a1-least 2°0 of ir~ avernge net profir for tl,e immediatdy preceding three 
finnncial yc~ns on corixmuc soci::ll rc~ponsibility (CSR) activities. The said section is applicable on the company, however, considering average profit for last 3 years, amount rcc1llircd to be 
spent under CSR is nil. 

a. Gros$ .'lmour,r cC<Jllllcd to be spent by the company dunng l.he year 1s Nil and prcvim.1s year is Nil . 
b Amount spent during rhe year on· 

For the :,criod ended March 31, 2024 For the. period ended March 31, 2023 
I Parc-iculars Paid Yet Lo be paid I To1al Paid Yet co be paid I Total 
I 1. Construction/acquisition of an asset I - l 
12. On nurnosc ocher than rn above I - - I 

Note 45: Segment Reporting 

The Company npcrnrcs in a single reportable si.:gmt'nt i.e. financing ::icrivi1y. which has similar risks and returns for rhe purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating scgmcms" and is considered co 
be the onlr rcp:>rtable business segment. The Comp:my derives its major revenues from financing activities and its customers arc widesprO'ld. Further, the Con::ipan} is operating in lndia 
which ls consid(:red as a single geographical segment 

Note 45B: Principal Business Criteria (PBC) 

As on March 31, 2023, the Company which is registered Non-Banking Firnmcial Compao~• (NBFq with Reserve Bank of India (R..Bl), post-merger of Tarnashna Financial Services 
Limited (TFSL; with lhc Company, does not fulfil the principal business criteria bid down by RBI. As per che said cricerin, Company should have at least 50% of total assel as financial 
asset and should dt:rive more than 50% of total income from the non-banking fin_,'\ncial activities assr.:t. The Cornpanr meets the first criteria of asset however it does not meet 1..hc second 
criteria of income.. Considering merger of Tf-SL with rJ,e Companr, RBI has allowed time till l\lar':2O24 to fulfi.l d1e said criteria as per letter issued by RB] dated Jul)' 22, 2022". As on 
t>.larch 31, 2024, tht: companr is meeting the principal business criteria in tefation to financial assets and financial income .. 

Note 46: Additional disclosures as required by the Reserve Bank of India 

(i) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) 

ParticuJars As at As at 

March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

CRtlR(%) 48.00 47.38 
CRt\R . Tic, I Capital (%) 48.00 47.38 
CRJ\R - Tie, II Capital (%) 
I .iquidity Coverage Ratio 1012% 1079% 
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-U capital 
Amoum raised b,, issue of Perperu.ll Debt Instruments 

(ii) 

Panicufars As at As .. 
March 31' 2024 March 31' 2023 

V ,d ue of I nvestments 

Gross Value of Jnvcsrmenrs 
(a) In India 313.38 100.39 

lrbl Outside India, 
Provisions for Depreciation 
(a) In India 

I/bl Outside lnd.ia, 
Net Value of Jm,eslments 
(a) In India 313.38 100.39 

lfbl Ourside India, 
Movement of orovisions held towards depreciation on investments 
(i) Opening bafance 
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year 
(iii) Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions during the year 

l(lvl Closin2. balance 

(iii) Derivatives:-
Th.e. Cornpanr has no transactions/exposure in derivatives in the current period and previous period. 

(i\·) Dernils of assignment transactions w1dcrtaken:-
Thc Company has no transactions/ exposure in a.,:;.signmen1 transactions in the current period and previous period. 

(v) Details of financial asset sold to Sccuritisation / Reconstruction Con,pany for asset rcconstruction:-:-
The Company has not sold financial a.ssccs to Sccuritisation / Reconstruction Companies for asset rc1.:onstruct:ion in the current pcr.iod and previous period. 

(vi) DetaiJs of non-pcrform_jng financia] assets purchased / sold:-
Thc.- Company Ji;i.s not purchased/ sold non-performing financial asset in the currl\nt period and previous period. 

(vii) .Exposure to real estate sector:• 
The Comp~nr has ntl c1-.posurc to real csti1tc sector during the current pcr:r.d :rnd previous period. 

(viii) Expu~urt: to c.,ipit.:il market:-
Thc Company has nn e,posure to capital mark<'t durmg the currcm peri0d and previou~ period, 



SATIN FINSERV UMITJ!D 

Notes to 1hc financial 5tatcmcnts for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts int in fakh~, unless staled othtnvhe) 

(i.x) Disclosurn relating to sccuritization:-

Tbe Comp,my ha~ entered into agreemc::nt for the securiti;mtion of loan:, with llssignees, wherein it has securilized a p,ut of its loans portfolio amounting to INR ~1259.71 
lakhs during the yc:u ended 1\farch 31, 2024 (~larch J I, 2023: INR 803.15 lakhs ). being the principal value outstanding a.s on the date of rhe deals rha1 are oul::.tandmg. 
The Companr is responsible for collection and getting serv icing of this loan porrfolio on behalf of inve~mrs/burcrs. ln terms of the said sccuririzarion agreements. the 
Company pars ro i11vcst0r/buyers on agrcc:<l date basis rhe prornta collection amount as per md1vidual 11i::.i-rcemcm tem1s. 

For 1l1e period For tlic period 
Particulars ended Mru:ch 31, ended .March 31, 

2024 2023 
I. No of SPEs holding assers for sccuricization trnnsactions originated by the originator 4 1 
2. Total :unount of .se.curirized assets as per boob of the SPEs 5,062.86 803.1 5 
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the originMor to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet 519.72 140.55 

a) Off Balance sheet exposures 
"' First loss 
* Others 

b) On Balance sheet exposures 
* First loss 519.72 140.55 
* Others 

4 Amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than MRR 260.98 
a) Off Balar1ce sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own securitizarions 
* First loss 
* Others 

ii) Exposure to third party securitizations 
* First loss 

* Others 
b) On Balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own securirizations 
"'Pin;t loss 260.98 
• Others 

ii) Exposure to third pany securitizations 
* First loss 

* Others 
5 Sale consideration received for the securitized assets and gain/loss on sale on accoum of securitizatfon 4,488.50 702.76 
6 Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided by .. vay of, liquidity support, post-securirization asset servicing, ct 
7 Performance of facility provided. Please provide ~eparately for e.tch facility viz. Credit enhancement, li9uiditJ• support, 

servicing agent etc. i\rcnrion percent in bracket as of total value of facility provided 
(a) Amount paid 
(b) Repayment received 
(c) Outstam.ling amount 780.70 140.55 

8 .. ..-\,verage default rnte of portfolios observed in the past. Please provide breakup 
scparnrely for each ~sscr class i.e. Rl\IBS, Vehicle Loans etc 

9 Amount and number of additional/top up loan ginn on same underl}'lng asset. 
Please provide breakup separately for each asset cb .. "-s i.e. Ri\lBS, Vehicle Loam etc 
10 Investor complaints (a) Directly/Indirectly received and; (b) Complaints 
outstanding 

(x) Information on instances of fraud:-

Nature of fr~ud (cash embezzlement by employee) For the yc:lf ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023* 

Numbec of Cases I 7 
Amount of Fraud 1.76 139.14 
RecoYerv 35.60 
Amount written off 1.76 103.55 
"' Amount repo'ted above for the prcvmus year 1s pursuant to merger of Tarnashna Financials Services Lmitcd with Sa□n hnserv limJlcd. These amount arc related ro 
prcv-ious financtal }'Cars. 

N:..ture of fraud (Borrower) For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023* 

Number of Cas:-s - 1 
Amount of Fraud 175.12 
Recover\/ -
:\mou11t writtc~ off 175.12 

(xi) Details of single borrower limit exceeded by applicable N811C:-
The Company docs not have single borrower exceeding the limirs during the current period and previous period. 

(xii) Details of financing of parent Company product:• 
'Ifie Company docs not have such lransaction during r.he current period and previous period. 

(xiii) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:-
Thc Company is registered with thr.: f?\Jinistf)' of Cr,rpo~ue Aff.urs' (Financial regulators }lS described h~· M.inislf}' of FU1:mcc). 

(xiv) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI & other regulators:-

Nn pcnaltic~ imposed liy RHl :tnd nthcr regulators durin,e; the currcnr pt-•riod llntl pre\'ious period. 
(xv) Concentration of ~d"·ances Exposures and NPAs ' 

P~lttic,,lars As .ti March 31, 20~ 
As at March 31, 

2023 
Concentration of Advances 

Total lldvanccs to twenty largest horruwcrs 3,984.37 6,381.72 
('-'lo) of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total aclnnces 12.38%; 28.84'!,'n 
Concentration of Exposures 

Total exposure to rwency largest borrowers 3,984.3i 6,381.72 
C1/o) uf exposure co tWCnt}' largest bnrrO\vers to total exposure 12.38% 28.84% 
Concentration of NP As 

Tn,tal exposure 10 rop four N PA accounn; 32.70 34.53 
~'10 Qf C)llt5lf~ rc co rop four NPA accounts 0.10% 0.16% 

"'' 



SATCN FINSERV LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts in~ in lakJis, unless stated otherwise) 

(xvi) Movement ofNPAs:-
For the year 

Paniculars ended March 31, 
2024 

i) Net NP As to net advance (%) 2.73% 
ii) Movement of NP As (Gross) 

a) Opening balance 1,044.62 
b) Addition during cl1e year 1,011.09 
c) Reduction/ write off during the year (458.34) 
d) Closing balance 1,597.38 

iii) l\lovementofNPAs (Net) 

a) Opening balance 605.65 
b) Acclition during cl1e year 713.35 
c) Rcduccion/ write off during the year (268.02) 
d) Closing balance 1,050.99 

iv) Mo\·ement of provisions foe N P As (excluding provisions 
on standard assets) 

a) Opening balance 438.97 
b) Addition during the year 297.74 
c) Reduction/ write off during the }1ear (190.32) 
d) Closing balance 54640 

(xvii) Unsecured advances - refer note 7 of Balance Sheet Notes 

Foe the year 
ended March 
31, 2023 

230% 

899.99 

610.74 

(466.11) 
1,044.62 

537.24 

332.77 

(264.36) 
605.65 

362.75 

277.97 

(201.75) 
438.97 

(xviii) Provisions & contingencies (shown under Expenses head in statement of profit & loss) 

For the ye:u For the year 
ParticuJars ended March 31, ended March 

2024 31, 2023 
Provision for standard and non performing assets 92.15 21.25 
Provision for gratuity (37.55) 28.83 
P.rovisjon for compensation absences (20.43) (10.07) 
Other Provisions 166.63 26.14 

(xix) Un-hedged foreign currency 

The Company does not have any foreign currency transaction dming the current and previous period. 

(xx) Intra-group exposures·-

For the year For the year For the 
ended March 31, ended March year ended 

Particulars 2024 (Customer) 31, 2023 March 31, 
(Customer) 2024 

(Borrower) 

a) Total amount of intra-group exposures 0.00 .W.88 0.00 
b) Total amount of top 20 intra-group cxposutes 0.00 39.88 0.00 

c) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of 

the Companv on borrowers/ customers 0.00% 0.18% 0.00% 

For the year 
ended 
March 31, 
2023 
(Borrower) 

4,00000 

4,000.00 

23.45% 

(xxi) 

Disclosure of stress assets as required under notification issued by RBI dated August 06, 2020, RBl/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 
read with notification issued by RBI dated and May 05, 2021, RBl/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC. 11/21.04.048/2021-22 (INR in Lakhs) 

Type of (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) 
borrower Exposure to accounts Of (A), aggregate debt Of (A) amount Of (A) amount paid Exposure to 

classified as Standard that slipped into NPA written off during by the borrowers accounts cl.assificd 
consequent to during th e half-year the half-year during the half-year as Standard 
implementation of consequent to 
resolution plan - Position implementation of 
as at the end of the resolution plan 
previous half-year (A) -Position as at the 

end of this half-year 

Pcrsomtl 

Loans 

C, .>rpor;lt1..' 
23203 232.03 . . pe.rsnns ... 

Of,,i,i,i,, 
MSMFc, -

Others· 
R08.62 

MSME 45.52 327.63 435.46 

Total 1,040.65 45.52 559.66 435.46 
* • s define<l m Secuou 3(7) of the lnsolvenc)' and B,tnkruptcy Code. 2016 

\\fl. 8 As.n 

?l
o 
~ 

I I . l' / ,,J 
,/ 

,.,./ 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts int in lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

(x.xii) Asset Liabilities Management Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:­
As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Liabilities 

Debt 
Securites 

Borrowings 
from Banks 

Marker 
Borrowings 
(other than 
Banks) 

Assets 
Advances 

Cash and 
cash 
equivalents 

Bank 
balances 
other than 
cash and 
cash 
equivalents 

1 day to 7 8 day to 14 
days days 

- -

0.47 -

72.10 30.51 

718.03 43.96 
3,440.86 1,835.00 

490.00 -

,,.,,_~\fl,.~­
r_~c;_ 

\ 

Over2 
Over3 

15 day to Over one Month 
Months upto 

Months 
30/31 days to 2 Months upto6 

3 Months 
Months 

- - - -

129.84 130.46 156.16 471.29 

1,080.78 704.94 830.18 2,364.76 

1,287.92 853.98 863.27 3,801.33 
- - 210.00 -

- 5.00 - 11.00 

Over6 
Months Over 1 Year Over 3 Years to 5 Overs 

Total upto 1 to 3 Years Years Years 
Year 

- 1,952.13 - - 1,952.13 

777.25 1,564.81 0.20 - 3,230.47 

4,501.22 10,598.27 141.01 - 20,323.78 

5,601.60 18,101.46 1,286.53 302.99 32,861 .06 
- - - - 5,485.86 

81.88 3,371.81 - - 3,959.69 

~SER 

,;t',-
~ GU~ RAM 

,IS) j'(> 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 
(All amounts in fin Iakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

As at March 31, 2023 

1 day to 7 Particulars 
days 

Liabilities 
Debt -
Securites 

Borrowings -
from Banks 

Market 57.48 
Borrowings 
(other than 
Banks) 

Assets 
Advances 368.32 
Cash an<l 978.76 
cash 
equivalents 

Bank -

balances 
other than 
cash and 
cash 
equivalents 

8 day to 14 15 day to 
days 30/31 days 

-

-

41.19 

55.43 

100.00 

-

Ssr ·V 
-◊ 

\ \7 'I 

I_- I 
x ' 

,-~ ~ 
-~•J 

-

100.04 

351.38 

676.76 
2,796.94 

-

Over one Month 
to 2 Months 

-

99.25 

395.47 

466.80 
-

-

Over2 
Over3 Over6 

Months Months Over 1 Year Over 3 Years to 5 Over 5 Months upto Total upto6 upto 1 to 3 Years Years Years 3 Months 
Months Year 

553.09 - - - - - 553.09 

99.98 301 .21 612.47 1,725.50 4.08 - 2,942.54 

400.46 1,288.26 2,217.94 5,187.53 3,350.00 - 13,289.72 

490.75 1,796.28 3,835.90 12,673.57 1,919.86 419.35 22,703.02 
2.77 - - - - - 3,878.47 

- - 50.03 3,111.41 0.00 - 3,161.44 

ERi; -- l,,.,. 
-g) 

RAM)Cj 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts int in lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

(xxiii) D isclosure of details as required under notification issued by RBI dated March 13, 2020, RBI/2019-20/170, DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109 /22.10.106/2019-20 

Loss 
Allowances 

Provisions Difference between Asset Gross carrying (Provisions Net 
required as Ind AS 109 Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification as Amount as per ) as Carrying 

per Ind AS 109 IndAS required Amount 
perIRACP Provisions and 

under Ind Norms IRACPNorms 

AS 109 

(1) (2) (3) 
Performing Assets 

(4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6) 

Standard Stage 1 30,767.91 41.19 30,726.72 170.27 (129.08) 
Stage 2 495.76 81 .25 414.52 1.98 79.26 

Subtotal 31,263.67 122.44 31,141.24 172.26 (49.82) 

Non-Performing Assets (NPA) 
Substandard Stage 1 1.62 0.06 1.57 0.16 (0.11) 
Substandard Stage 2 21 G.11 44.36 171.74 21 .61 22.75 
Substandard Stage 3 1,082.89 421.93 660.96 108.29 313.64 
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 296.76 80.04 216.72 59.35 20.69 
I to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful 296.76 80.04 216.72 59.35 20.69 

Loss Stage 3 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Subtotal for NPA 1,597.38 546.40 1,050.99 189.41 356.98 

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which Stage 1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current Stage 2 N il Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning 
(IR.ACP) norms Stage 3 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Subtotal Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

"

i Q ~~ 
Stage I 30,769.54 41.25 30,728.29 170.44 (l:l'J.11!) 

Total r;"'-(' Stage 2 711.87 125.61 586.26 23.59 102.02 
\ Stage 3 1,379.65 501.97 877.68 167.64 334.33 

Uj I Total 32,861.06 668.84 32,192.22 361.67 307.16 ""' 

~

\ 
\. . ' 



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31' 2024 

(All amounts in fin lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

(xxiv) Breaches in terms of covenants in respect ofloans availed by the NBPC or debt securities issued by the NBFC including incidence/s of dcfault.:­

'fherc b no breach in terms of covenants in respect ofloans availed or debt sccunties 1ssi1e<l br the Company including incidence/ s o f default 

(xxv) D ivergence in asset classification and provisioning above a cett3in threshold to be decided by the Reserve Bank:­
Thcrc is no divergence in asset classification and provisioning robe reported as per RB! guidelines. 

(xxvi) Sectoral Exposure·-

For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended Marcl1 31, 2023 

Total Total 
Exposure Percentage Exposure Percentage 
(includes of Gross (includes of Gross 

Sectors o n balance Gross NPAs to on balance Gross Nl'As to 
sheet and NPAs total sheet and Nl'As totaJ 

off-balance exposure in off-balance exposure in 
sheet that sector sheet that sector 

exposure) exposure) 

I ACJticulturc and allied activities 6,768.04 556.53 8.22% 2,807.57 350.42 12.48% 
MSME 3,775.56 473.59 12.54°/" 3,329.75 354.20 10.64% 
Services 17,830.22 496.97 2.79% 10,964.13 335.54 3.06% 
Comorate borrowers 4,197.08 0.00°/.1 5,434.30 0.00 0.00% 
Others 290.16 70.29 24.23% 167.28 4.46 2.67% 

Total 32,861.06 1,597.38 4.86% 22,703.02 1,044.62 4.60% 

(xxvii) Customer complaints·-

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

a) Number of comt= !aims pending at the bee:innimz: of the vearl 
b) Number of complaint received during the ,·ear 32 5 
c) Number of complaints disposed during rhc rear 32 5 
d) Of which, number of c:ompla.ints rejected br the comoany -
d) Number of complaint pendin~ at the ertd of the \'ear 

Top five grounds of complaints received by the Company from customer 

Grounds of complaints, 
(i.e. complaints relating to) Number of complaints Number of 

% increase/ decrease in pend.ing at rhe complaints 
Number of 

Of S, number of 
the number of complaints beginning of received 
complaints received pending at the end 

complaints peniling 
the year du.ring the 

over the previous year of the year 
beyond 30 days 

year 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

For the vear ended March 31, 2024 

Complainr/ enquiries w.r.t 
terms of loan agreement 32 540~0 -

For the vear ended March 31, 2023 

Complainr/enquiries w.r.r 
terms of loan agreement - 5 .38% 

(xx viii) Rating assigned by crecLil rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year-

D uring the y~ar, the Company's various instn.imenrs were rated, the details of rJ1ese rnr-ings are as under:• 

S. No. Particulars Amount Credit rating agency Current rat1no Previous rating-
I Long-term fund-based bank facilities 80.00 ICRA Limited ICRA A- {Stable) NA 

2 Long-term fund-based bank focilfoes 50.00 Acuite RatinJ,?;s Ltd ACLJITE A- (Smblc) AClJITE BBB+ (Stable) 

3 
Long-term fu nd-based bank facilities* 

50.00 CARE Ratings Limited NA CARE llBB+ (Stable) 

4 .Long-term fund-based bank facilities"' 
50.00 CARE Ratings Limited CARE BBB+ (St>blc) Ci\RE JlBB- {Stable) 

5 Non Convertible Debentures* 5.00 CARE Ratin~s limited NA CARE BBB+ (Stable) 
6 Non Convertih!t:.' Oeheatures>< 5.00 C'.ARE Rating~ Limited CARE BBB+ (Stable) CARE BBB+ (CE)(Stahle) 
7 Non Convertible Debentures 60.00 1CRA Limited ICRA A- (Stable) NA 
R Sccuritiz.ation 7.01 ,\ cuite Ratings I td i\ClJITE A- (SO) Pm\'i!'.aion:11 , \C L'lTE ,\ - (SO) 

9 Securitization S.44 Ct\RE Rating, Limitt.d C/\ll E ,\ (SO) N ,\ 

j (J Securit.iz.auon (Ec1uity Tranche) 0.-IS CARE Katinl!~ J .1mit-:d LARE BBB (SOI N~\ 
11 Securitization 8.36 JCRA Limited 0CRAIA+(SO) N A 
12 Scc:uritization (Equity Tranch,.-) 0.48 JCJ{A Limited ncRAJBBB+ (SO) NA 

13 Securitizannn 21.06 JCRA Limited l]CRAIA (SO) N A 



SATIN l'lNSERV UM ITED 
Notc'i tu the financial !'.tatcmcms for the period ended ~·(arch JI' 2024 

{t\ 1; :\mounts in t m bkhs, unbs st:Hctl othcnvis~•) 

47 T lu: Ho:ird of Directors of Tarna~bn:i l~immcml St'n'lces Limited (""J'FSL/ mergl'l.l L'ntitr'J :md .Sann l;in~l'n· J_1mm:rl (''SPI."), in their rc~pecti\'c meeting~ held on t\u.t,rtlst 03, 2021, hin·e Cl1m1ckrcd and approvcJ the 

Schcmt· of Arrangement for Amal~amauun t)f 1'FSL ('''J'rnnsforor lompany') \\1th !WI. ("Tr:"lnsfe-ree Cumpan.\"') an<l then· rc:-pccti\'C shueboklcr~ and crcduor:-- \Scheme') under Section~ 2.3() to 232 r.1i the 

Compani1..) Act, 20JJ ("Act") and o ther applicnblc provisions of the Act and rules mnde 1hcreunJcr. C:on~c<1ucntly, the first mouon applici1r1m1 ha~ been filed before ·, [on'blc NCI :r, ChAA<liJ,.rarh Bench ;tftlT obtaining 

rt'.qubi11,; NOC:s from sh:i.reho!der4crcditnrs ofbotb companie:. a.nJ government ,wthoruies. [he s:UJ firn 111M1ofl :i.pplicnuon i~ rcscrn:d ,anJ :1.l10,.vcJ b}' rhe s:1i,l ! !()n'bk '\JCI.T on he:i.ring Jami ,\pril 06, 2022 Thl 

both companies h:Ls filed joint scecmd motion applic'il.tion wirh l-lon'blc NCl:r on !\ lay 25, 2022 which 1<: admitted by I lon'ble N(JT in irs hc:lring dM<.-'tl J uly OS, 2022 and ;._sued necessa.rr direction~ tif scn-ing norjce~ 

:1nd newspaper~ :d\'erti<:emcnts. ,\1;cvrdingly, tl1c. both comp:inic.s has served the nottces to governmenl authorities anJ completed public:,.rion in rC<.-Jui-.itc newspapers i\S per f'lrder. The I lon'b\c NCLT in its hearing 

dilled Jrinuary 31, 2023 hris :tpprovcd the Schcmt. of Arrangcmenl for. Amalgamauon ofTFSI. a.n<l SFI,. After rcqu.isire filing with C01\cerned ROC, the snid Scheme got cffecti\'e from i\ larch 01, 2023. The Appomtcd 

Oatc of Scheme is Aptil 01, 2021. 

48 There is no rnscs of transacuons with 1hc: compaoies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 o f Companies Acc. 1956. 

49 Trade Receh,ables a~cin.e: schedule 

Paniculars Outstandim! for follO\"inP ncriods from due datt! of pa ment - March 31' 2024 
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 vcar 1-2 vears 2-3 vcars More than 3 vcars Total 

l{i) Undisputed Trade receivables - consiJcred 2ood 322.88 2.17 11.13 1.47 337.64 

(ii} UnJispurcd T::i.dc R'-·cch"i\blcs - which hiwe si1-nifican1 incrcl\sc in 
crcJit risk 

!(iii) Undisoutcd Trade Rcccivnblcs- credit imoi\ired 
l(i\') Disoutcd Tmlc Receivables- considered <morl 

(v} Disputed Tude Receivables -which hrivc signi6cam increase in 
credit risk 

I (vi) Disputed 'frndc Receivables- credit impaired 

Trade Receivables af!"ein~ schedule 

Particulars Outst:mdinc: for followin~ periods from due dale ofparment- March 31' 2023 
Not due Less than G months G months - 1 vear 1-2vea.rs 2-3 vears More tlrnn 3 vc:us Total 

I (i) Undisputed Trade rcceiv:i.bles - considered rrnntl 285.16 8.74 2.97 1.27 0.19 298.33 

(ii) Lfodispurccl Trade Rccc.ivablc:, - wluch have 5-ignificam increase in 
credit risk 

I (iii) Undisputed Trade Reccivahles - credi f impaired 

(iv) Disouted Trade Rccc.iYables- considered rood 

(v) Disputed Trarle Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

I (Vl) Disputed Tl").d<: Receivable~ - credit impaired 

49A Unbilled re.venue a ·,ein, schedule 

Particulars Outstandin for followin eriods Crom due date of aVJnc nt- March 31' 2024 
Not due Less than 6 months 6 mon1hs - 1 car 1-2 ears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total 

i Un dis uted Uribille:d revc1\UC - considcn:d •ood 121.04 

Unbilled revenue a cin, schedl1le 

Particulars Outstandin for followin eriods from due date of a ment- March 31' 2023 
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - I elf.r 1-2 can 2-3 ears More than 3 

i Undis utcd UnhiJ!ed revenue - considered !Ood 370.63 

50 AddirioMI infonn:ufon pursuant to Ministry of Corporote Affairs notification d=ited March 24, 2021 with respect to amendments in Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 
(i) There are no proceeding~ which ha\-e be,en initiated or pernlmg agruns! the company for holtling any bcnrimi property undcc rhc Bcnam1 Transnctions (Pcohibiuon) Act, 1988 (45 o f 1988) and mies made 

thereunder. 

(ii) The compan) i.s rot a wiltul dcfauher as declared by any bank or [1ni\ncial Institution or any other lender. 

(iii) There are no charge.)lj or rn isfact.ion ret to be regis1ered with Kegistrar of Companies (ROq heyond the statutory period. 

(iv) The companr has complied with the numbc.:r of larers p rescrilxd under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on nwnber of J ,arers) Rules, 201 7. 

(v) There arc no tu.macuons which are no, recorcled in the hooks of acc(mnts tha1 has been surrendered or disclosed 2s income during the rear in the tax assessments under the lncome Tu ,\ct, 1961 (such 
as, ~earch or sun·ey or anr other rde,ant provisio1,s of the Income Tax Acr, 1961). 

(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currenc)' or Virtual Currency during the year. 

121.04 

Total 

370.63 

(vii) During the year, no funds (which are ma.teriaJ either individually or in the a~egate) have been advanced or loaned or im'csted (either from b()rrnwcd fi.mds or share premium t)r any other sources or kind of funds) hy 
the Compan~ to or in any othet person or rnmy, including foreign emit} ( .. lmenne<liaries'), with 1hc undersranding, whether recorded in \\Tiring or otherwise, tha1 the lntc.-:m,ediarl shall, whether, dircctl} or mdireetl) 
lend or inve.st in nrhcr persons or entities identified in any manner whatroever by or on hehalf of rht Comp;tny ("Ultima1e Bcnefic.iatics") or pro,.idc i1ny guaram<:e, scwrity or the like on behalf of the Ultirriate 
Beneficiaries. 

(viii) During 1hc.-: year, no funds (which arc nuu-erial cithcr indiviclually or in the aggregate) h2ve been received hy the Companr from any person or entity, including foreign emiry \'Funding Parties"), with rhc 
understanding, whether reco rded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or em.ities klentified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
hchnlf t'l( the PW'lclin,Q; Pan.~· C'Ultim.tu: lkndiciarics'? or pmvidc any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the LTlt.imate Beneficiaries. 

51 Pre,.;ou5 .1 ear Fi~res have heen re-grouped/fe-d:i.ssified where\·Cr necessllr}' to make it compaf11hlc wirh rhc fi,Qurc prcs..:ntcd for i-hc vcar ended 31 sr l\farch 2024. 

The accompanying ncit·c1 are an integral pan of the fo,anci~l statemems. 

/\s per our review rqx,n of even d:uc a1tacht:d 

Por R:ijecv Bhat.fa & Associ:.ttes 

Pl~cc: Gunigr.un 

Date: April 22'2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

S tin Finscrv Limited 

~..os.l\(~ •• 
B 1uvncsh Khanna - • 
D IN: 03323118 

\VTD & CEO 

Pla?~:;;,am 

Atj1t~1sal 

Chief Fin:mci;1I Officer 

Place : Gumgram 

D,ic: April 22'2024 

Harvinclct Pal Singh 
DIN: 00333754 
Dircctur 

~ c : \ u;i• ~ 

~ Si~ 
M No.: A40102 

Company Sccrctaf}OI{ C.,.{O 
PJ;tcc : Gumgram 



To, 

The Board of Directors, 

Satin Finserv Limited, 

Plot no. 4921 Wing-4B1 Udyog Vihar, Phase-Ill, 

Gurugram, Haryana -122016 

Rajeev Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

201, 203, 2nd Floor, 
A-20, lndraprastha Bhawan, 

Dr. Mukherjee Nagar 
Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009 

011-45131008,9810057854 
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com 

Sub: Master Direction - Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 

We, Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, have audited the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (the "Company") for 
the period ended March 31, 2024 and have issued our report dated April 22, 2024. 

Based on the audited financial statements of the Company referred to above and information / explanations and 
representations received from the management, we confirm the following particulars: 

(A) In the case of all Non-Banking Financial Companies 

1. The company has obtained a Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India under section 45-IA of 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

2. Due to the amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited (amalgamating entity) with the company, as on 
March 31, 2023, the company was not fulfilling Principal Business Criteria (PBC) laid down by the RBI. As per the criteria, 
atleast 50% of total assets of the company should be financial assets and atleast 50% of the gross income should be 
from financial activities. The company met the first criteria, but did not meet the second criteria as on March 31, 2023. 
However, the RBI vide letter dated July 22, 2022 granted the company, time till March 31 1 2024 for fulfilling the said 
criteria as disclosed in note no. 438 to the financial statements and we reported in our Audit Report dated April 221 

2023. 

On the basis of our examination and further information and explanation provided to us, the Company, as on March 
31, 2024, is meeting both the criterion for PBC. 

3. The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master DirectLon - Non-Banking 
Finan_cial Com12any_ - SystemlcallyJmportant Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) DirectionsJQlf, and 
amendmenttheceon frnm tim€ to time. 

(B) In the case of a non-banking financial companies accepting/holding public deposits 

Being a Non-Deposit taking Non-banking financial company, para (B) of Chapter II of Master Direction - Non-Banking 
Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company. 

(C) In the case of a non-banking financial company not accepting public deposits 

We further confirm that: 

1. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non- acceptance of any public deposits dated April 22, 2023-
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Rajeev Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

201, 203, 2nd Floor, 
A-20, lndraprastha Bhawan, 

Dr. Mukherjee Nagar 
Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009 

011-45131008,9810057854 
i nfo@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com 

2. As per our verification of books of accounts and further explanation and information produced before us, we 
confirm that the Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

3. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset 
classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial 
Company - Systemically Jmportant Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

4. The Capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the RBI in form DNBS-03, has been correctly 
arrived at and is in compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed. The company has furnished the return within t he 
stipulated period. 

5. On the basis of our verification and further explanation and information as produced before us, we confirm that 
the Company has been registered with Reserve Bank of India under section 45-IA under the category- Loan Company. 
Accordingly, classification as NBFC Micro Finance Institutions (MFI) as defined in the Non-Banking Financial Company 
- Syst emica lly Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the 
Company for the financial year ended March 311 2024. 

(D) In the case of a company engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution not required to hold CoR 
subject to certain conditions 

Para (D) of Chapter II of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company. 

This certificate is addressed to and provided to Board of Directors of the Company, in terms of Chapter II of Master 
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, solely for the purpose 
of enabling it to comply with the requirement of the Master Directions which inter alia requires it to submit the 
certificate by the Statutory Auditors to Board of Directors and should not be used, referred to of distributed for any 
other purposes without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability if it is to be 
used for other than its intended purpose without our prior written consent. 

Place of Signature: Delhi 

Dated: April 221 2024 
For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Fir.m;s Re istration No.: 021776N 
• 1-lSn 
... "a 

\0, 

Jatin Goel 

Partner 

M. No. 553420 
UDIN - 2 ~553,4 2o gK'A (3C.C. :}.½Tb 
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